MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, February 26, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.
Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon
AMENDED

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m.
City/Citizen Comments: Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda
Open Agenda: The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda
Consent Calendar
a. Accounts Payable February 27™
b. Minutes: December 11, 2019, December 18, 2019
c. KnowBe4 (Cybersecurity Awareness Training) Statement of Work
d. 2020 Oregon Department of Agriculture Wolf Depredation Compensation &
Financial Assistance County Grant Program Application
5. Business Items
a. 9:15 a.m. - Presentation by Ione Charter School FFA Students
b. Legislative Updates
c. Letter of Support, Public Health Department grant application to the Eastern
Oregon Coordinated Care Organization to assist in the purchase of electronic
health record system (Sheree Smith, Public Health Director)
Office Machine Survey Results (Kate Knop, Finance Director)
Irrigon Building Update (Darrell Green, Administrator)
Discuss Navy’s response to request for perpetual easement
Consider sponsorship funding for the Eastern Oregon Economic Summit
(Commissioner Doherty)
h. Purchase Pre-Authorization Request, Road Department Hook Trucks (Eric Imes,
Assistant Road Master)
6. Department Reports
a. Road Department Monthly Report (Eric Imes)
7. Correspondence
Commissioner Reports
9. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) — To conduct deliberations with
persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations
10. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) — To conduct deliberations with
persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions
11. Signing of documents
12. Adjournment
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Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under
“Upcoming Events”). Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday.

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613.
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Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday. If something urgent comes up after this
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, Administrator at (541) 676-2529.

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 2 of 2



Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes
December 11,2019
Irrigon Branch of the Oregon Trail Library District, Community Room
Irrigon, Oregon

Present

Chair Jim Doherty Justin Nelson, County Counsel
Commissioner Don Russell Richard Tovey, County Counsel
Commissioner Melissa Lindsay Karmen Carlson, Human Resources Director
Darrell J. Green, Administrator Roberta Lutcher, Executive Assistant

Kate Knop, Finance Director

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: 9:00 a.m.

City & Citizen Comments:

Irrigon City Manager, Aaron Palmquist, welcomed everyone to Irrigon and provided a brief
update on changes to some of the City’s projects.

Former Morrow County Commissioner and Irrigon resident, John Wenholz, said he was at the
meeting to support the zone change movement from Pole Line Road to Paterson Ferry Road.
Open Agenda: No items

Consent Calendar
Commissioner Russell moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar:
1. Two Accounts Payable, December 12", $70,032.77 & Visa $12,468.71; Manual Check
Run, December 5", $6,437.92; Retirement Taxes, December 5%, $21,492.80
2. Oregon Health Authority (OHA) Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) #159175,
Amendment 4, Financing of Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery & Prevention
and Problem Gambling Services; and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the
County
3. Oregon Health & Science University Subaward #1015198, Amendment 1, CaCoon Home
Visiting Services; and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the County
4. OHA IGA #159824, Amendment 5, Public Health Emergency Preparedness & Response
Funding; and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the County
Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

9:03 a.m. Public Hearing

Chair Doherty asked everyone to sign-in and called for abstentions or conflicts of interest. He
said he met with the applicants (Ryan Neal, Port of Morrow Executive Director) at a regular
quarterly meeting and there was some discussion about some ground they were looking at. He
said it won’t weigh on his decision here but he wanted to be out front.

Commissioner Lindsay said she also met a few times briefly with Mr. Neal for input on the

application. She said she also had a conversation about the application with POM Commissioner
Rick Stokoe and with staff in the Planning Department.
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Commissioner Russell said he attended the first Planning Commission hearing on this request
and heard the testimony offered there, other than that, he did not have a conflict.

Commissioner Lindsay said to Commissioner Russell that with all due respect, he set the stage to
conflict each other out when he said she shouldn’t serve on the Green Energy Corridor. She said
she believed he had a conflict that rises to the occasion of not voting and removing himself from
the dais, as well.

He asked, “For what?”

Commissioner Lindsay said his company was mentioned numerous times in the application. The
statement was made that you’ve committed to serve the ultimate end-user of this project, on
more than one occasion. She said she believed the conflict was clear.

Commissioner Russell said he would ask County Counsel. He explained he sits on the board of
directors of a fiber company that may have an opportunity to bid on this, along with other
companies. “Is that a conflict?” he asked.

Commissioner Lindsay said Commissioner Russell was an owner, as well as sitting on the board.

Commissioner Russell said they did not have a contract and if they bid on it, there would be
other bidders.

County Counsel Justin Nelson said he did not know all the business connections. There is a very
fine line with government ethics, and he recommended a break for a phone call to reach out to
the Oregon Government Ethics Commission for feedback.

Commissioner Russell said he was confident he did not have a conflict.

Commissioner Lindsay said, for the record, Windwave is named specifically in the application
on numerous occasions. The meeting that is referenced in the application discussing the services
area states, “The commitment to serve this project has been made by Windwave.” She said
Windwave is the only one already on both sides of the property and she thought the Ethics

Commission would have the final decision how we move forward.

Commissioner Russell said this was a bid process with the contractor and he knew of three or
four other companies that work on similar things.

Commissioner Lindsay said you are the only provider to the Port. She suggested he call the
Oregon Government Ethics Commission for an opinion.

Commissioner Russell said he’d be willing to take a break and call the Ethics Commission.

Break: 9:09-9:25 a.m.
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Commissioner Russell said the outcome of the conversation was he had a “potential” conflict
serving on the Board of Directors of Windwave, and he is a minor shareholder in Windwave. It
doesn’t preclude him from voting, he said, because it’s not an “actual” conflict. Continuing, he
said he also had a potential conflict as a retail business owner in Morrow County that this could
increase population to my businesses at the carwash and laundry in Boardman. Not an “actual”
conflict, again it’s a “potential” conflict, he explained.

Chair Doherty said: An actual conflict being it’s a foregone conclusion you’re going to profit.
It’s not if, but when and how much. In the utilities hearing, and this is something you can take
back with you, Blake Lawrence (Windwave General Manager) spelled out clearly that he was
going to have a 36-run block of whatever they do, to take care of this customer. It wasn’t like he
potentially could, so I’m not going to step in this. If Commissioner Russell felt it was a potential
conflict, I’m happy to move forward.

Chair Doherty read how to offer testimony and then officially opened the Public Hearing. He
again called for abstentions or conflicts but said he was satisfied with what was already stated.
The Staff Report was requested.

Stephanie Case, Interim Planning Director, said the request by the applicant was to rezone
approximately 89.6 acres of land from General Industrial to Exclusive Farm Use, which is
located near Bombing Range Road, and to rezone another 89.6 acres of land from Exclusive
Farm Use to Port Industrial, located along Paterson Ferry Road, resulting in no net change to the
Industrial Land inventory. The conversion of land from Exclusive Farm Use to Port Industrial
requires an exception to Statewide Planning Goals 3, 11 and 14 thereby converting the land from
resource uses to industrial uses and allowing development at an urban scale.

She said the applicant was the Port of Morrow and the landowner for the property along
Bombing Range Road should be indicated as Windy River, and the landowner along Paterson
Ferry Road was Kaizen Holdings, LLC.

She discussed the attachments: Planning Commission Final Findings of Fact and multiple
comment letters in support and opposition.

County Counsel Justin Nelson explained the timeline for receipt of the letter from 1000 Friends
of Oregon relative to the October 29™ Planning Commission meeting. The letter was received
via email after Ms. Case left the office at 5:15 p.m. for the 7:00 p.m. Planning Commission
meeting in Boardman. That is why their letter was not added for consideration, because it hadn’t
been received in time, he said. It was added for consideration by the Board of Commissioners on
November 13™ as well as another received November 12%, The November 13" BOC hearing
was continued to today to be better prepared, due to staff transitions, etc., he said.

Ms. Case said this amendment comes to the Board with a “do adopt” recommendation from the
Planning Commission supported by the Findings in the packet.
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Chair Doherty had a process question regarding the three different landowners referenced. He
asked Ms. Case if there was a signed correspondence from Windy River requesting to move
forward.

She said Farmland Reserve was identified in the initial findings but she could not find a reason
why - it was simply a staff error. In everything else, she said, it was listed as Windy River.
From the beginning, it’s been accurate and was incorrectly identified only in the Findings, which
didn’t come to her attention until after the Planning Commission hearings. She said this
information has been provided in the memo.

Commissioner Lindsay asked when Windy River came to know their land was being changed.

Ms. Case said they knew from the beginning. She said she had an email conversation last week
verifying everyone has known about this whole process but apparently no one caught the fact it
was listed as Farmland Reserve in the Findings.

Commissioner Lindsay said this is the second one that’s come through with the applicant not
being the same as the owner. Is that common? she asked.

Ms. Case said it was common, even on minor actions, particularly if there is going to be project
or a sale of the property. Then the person purchasing or doing the project will come in as the
applicant and the landowner asks them to handle it.

As Commissioner Lindsay attempted to ask another question about Windy River and when it
became aware of the zone change request, Chair Doherty said he believed Commissioner
Lindsay was requesting to see the correspondence with Windy River.

Ms. Case said they were aware and currently use it for agricultural purposes and continue to do
so. In the agreement in purchasing it from the Port, they agreed they’d release that zoning at the
point the Port wanted.

Mr. Nelson asked the process to verify a request is legitimate when an applicant comes in on
behalf of an owner. Ms. Case outlined the Planning Department processes.

Chair Doherty asked Ms. Case if she was confident prior to the Planning Commission hearing
that there was correspondence with the landowner verifying that. She responded, “Correct, they

provided the sales agreement.”

Commissioner Russell asked if the letter that was received from 1000 Friends of Oregon after the
Planning Commission hearing (October 29™) was brought forward to last night’s Planning
Commission meeting.

Ms. Case said, no, that meeting was for other actions.

Mr. Nelson talked about an email from 1000 Friends that stated they were unable to attend the
meeting today and asked for an additional seven days to keep the record open. He said the
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applicant would be against that since 1000 Friends has had it for a long time, but he wouldn’t get
into fairness and recommended following the law. Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 197.763(6)
talks about a participant at an initial evidentiary hearing can ask for seven days. It’s a “shall”
and then the applicant can have another seven days to respond, he said. There are timeline
considerations for the Board now, said Mr. Nelson.

Chair Doherty called for proponents.

J.R. Cook, Cook’s Land and Water Consulting, representing the Port of Morrow
Ryan Neal, Executive Director, Port of Morrow _
Mr. Cook said the packet contained Mr. Neal’s letter about w '.' at the Port does when courting a
potential candidate for site selection, which he will speak #88r. Cook said he wanted to go
through the planning and coordination prior to selectinglthe’Sit@or the zone swap. He offered
the followmg We have an 1nc1us1ve commumty of factif 1t are

significant level of planning at both the CLj Bia Development Authority) level and for
the Port to figure out how do you economicaih grdetiscrve the future development on the
Depot with water and wastewater services, fofexafplc. nthen
from the existing rural service area, East Beachg@iid the Depot, Which requires some planning.
In addition, there are services the Port provides f@fidevelopers that may impact the ability to
itesfome sapand in some of the areas that the Port’s
Sbing Port facilities, a lot of it is rail
the Port is looking at additional rail service and things of that nature, to
snd rail is, in fact, a hinderance in some cases to what the Port is

looking at this: 8 data center development, which requires a buffer from rail due to
some of thosc'Site i €ria. When you factor all these things together, and I’ll add one
final one becaus of 10 with Northeast Oregon Water Association (NOWA), we’re
trying to figure out R@% @Our critical groundwater areas and minimize economic

LParKs on the backs of groundwater which ultimately impacts the
underlying senior groundWatépTights users. Lastly, anyone who’s read the papers knows our
dairies that are south of IntefState 84 require potable water supply for cattle operations that
historically hasn’t been needed for either trees or potato production and that’s created some
conflicts within Oregon water law in terms of using an irrigation water right that’s a groundwater
right that’s considered potable for cows year-round. So, there’s the need to look at ways to serve
some of our dairy operations with potable water supply needs but it requires a hefty run of pipe
to do that. Factoring all that in, the site selection is really one of the reasons why this site was
selected. One —how do we find a location that fits in well with the future industrial park that
will be the Depot, and allows the Port to extend the services to that region in an orderly manner
that minimizes impact to agriculture and surrounding lands. The second piece of this is finding a
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location that’s suitable for this kind of tenant that does not have the impacts associated with the
East Beach area, primarily the rail and the buffer for air quality purposes that Mr. Neal will
discuss with the methane digester he’s looking at developing. The third and foremost is the
blessing and the curse that is the Port of Morrow’s facility and their land use zoning. As you all
know, the blessing is that Morrow County was blessed with significant amounts of industrial
ground back when we had Space Age Industrial ideas for areas south of I-84 and southwest of
the City of Boardman. Knowing that’s never going to come and it’s actually the grow-out of the
land use patterns, primarily irrigated agriculture, that’s what the Port of Morrow wants to
reconvey, that industrial zoning, to the appropriate location for industrial purposes and that’s on
the north side of I-84 primarily. The first zone swap...was the first chunk of ground off of this
farm was used to establish the East Beach Industrial Park and now we’ve got slivers of these
islands of industrial zoning around that Mr. Neal and the Port of Morrow are trying to get located
to serve the orderly build-out, hopefully, of the Port’s industrial engine that is the Morrow
miracle really. So, getting into the Findings, there’ssa few things that came up I want to touch on
— a couple of legal issues associated with the contifiiation of the hearings, landownership. Seth
King with Perkins Coie is the Port’s attorney f@F#h1s matter and he can bring those up so I won’t
touch on those but I will say the ownership pic€8f the land, the Port has retained ownership of
Qmhing off o.—._i-"_:g d it’s in the deed in your
e Rortd0 move that zoning when and if they
e teCord is complete regardless of what
VIl Windy River, the chairman is Bob
Levy, to confirm that is the deal they struck with the Port of Ni® _
deal today. The other piecg that has been brought up isa sxgm reant i
suitablealt @ cxplain a little more to you
land the pa.rameters of Wthh they’re supposed to look for

al can tell you, potentially provide an economical
N ' 176 and final one, that is big to me, that as you all

know is the compatibility with tHeSar
Anywhere we’re close to the Colunt@i@River that we can farm, we do. And so, any of the
industrial zoned land in the Port that’s Wfileveloped has a pivot on it or is irrigated and most of
the facilities we locate we use their reuse Water out in our critical groundwater areas where we’re
so water starved. That reuse project, that pipeline heads under 1-84 right about that location at
Paterson Ferry and heads south to serve Madison Ranches and eventually a couple other farms
with water and nutrient value for irrigated ag. In terms of compatibility, this intended site and
intended use is compatible with ag. Because the same time they need irrigation water is the same
time we need cooling water, so it’s a good marriage. In terms of the wastewater disposal and
having that reuse zone and that waterline along Paterson Ferry ensures that water is going to get
reused for ag. The last one which is a big one to me, is that getting the raw water and the potable
water system out that far to Paterson Ferry allows us to then get the services extended to the
Depot and right now unless the Port provides water to the Depot, the only water supply option
that Depot has are its groundwater rights, which are rights they conveyed to the CDA by the
federal government, and their basalt groundwater rights which is in the Ordnance Basalt Critical
groundwater area. Should those rights be developed by the industrial (inaudible) on the Depot,
there will be allocation issues with irrigated agriculture around it and we want to prevent that by
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getting these non-critical groundwater sources out to the Depot to service that development
rather than having the CDA rely on development with deep wells. This was a roundabout way of
telling you the significant amount of time that went into figuring out a way to accommodate this
use, find the right piece of property, and do so in a manner that meets the statewide planning
goals for both site analysis, orderly extension of public services, and compatibility with existing
farm uses.

Mr. Neal said as Mr. Cook pointed out, the Port submitted what site selection looks like on this
process. Rail is a significant deterrent in the Findings and we’re adding another 27,000 feet of
rail in the East Beach area that will make a lot of that ground unavailable, which is noted on the
map here. As well as the anaerobic digester, we’re in the process of getting a DEQ (Department
of Environmental Quality) air permit which also restricts some of the availability of land in East
Beach, but we don’t know the extent yet because we’re still in that process. We also looked at
the airport and from an infrastructure standpoint, wggdon’t have anything with the ability to get
the power, water, wastewater, and the ground cogdp@8ition is very tough to develop on there, as
well. Those are some of the reasons this site fi§@ll of those things and like we said, we had a
pre-meeting just to say we can get all the serviégsto this site so we could make sure that we’re
not putting in something in a place where it’s going# dgted and not be able to
accommodate what we intended to do.

Chair Doherty asked about the services, not so much utilitigg@hbut public services side of things
This is something Amazon does as opposed to the Port. He he reason he asked, because as
a government entity, he as cd the Port has to go out for bid 0 ious and sundry things

Mr. Neal said yes, thé'glig iomplete control of what services come to their site. We, as
properly the pr0v1der of Wate wastewater systems that will be what we provide just like we
do within ousdndustri

going to have to bound&iba Bg0cs one direction.

Mr. Neal: It goes right to Mdadison’s and we have made an agreement to extend further from
Madison’s down to Mader Rust for additional agricultural ground so this will add to that ability.
I’d ask Port Commissioner Jerry Healy to talk about the planning process for the Depot and the
Port’s long-term strategy and how can we get this done and the ability to get water to the dairies
and some other things that are critical and important to the Port.

Mr. Healy: Mr. Cook touched on some of the utilities. The planning process by the Port

regarding the Depot property has been going on for 30 or 35 years and it’s always been a goal to
get some of that property transferred to the Port for industrial purposes but it’s a big hurdle and
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we’re getting close. We keep thinking each month that next month it will be transferred but it
looks like that transfer is reasonably close to taking place. It’s a very isolated spot out at the
Depot and the infrastructure costs to get water, wastewater, electrical, fiber to the Depot are
astronomical figures. This project is a mid-way point and an anchor tenant to bring to fruition
some of that long-term strategic plan that we’ve had to get services out to the Depot. If we don’t
have an anchor tenant to assist in getting water and wastewater to Paterson Ferry, which will be a
good jump off point to go on to the Depot, Umatilla Electric Coop will certainly have to upgrade
electrical to facilities in the neighborhood and fiber facilities will have to be upgraded too. There
are multiple fiber lines in that vicinity. Zayo has fiber on Highway 730, Windwave has fiber on
Hwy. 730, the Port has fiber with the pipeline going out to Madison’s, that would not be a
bandwidth.

Chair Doherty: Is it Windwave fiber line that goes ouf .

Mr. Healy: No, that’s the Port’s fiber line. It’s for management of"th@water system. I seriously

doubt there’s fiber in that line.

Chair Doherty: Who installed it?

Mr. Neal: Idon’t know. I’d have t&g8back and look.
Chair Doherty: I assume it was put out§0x

Mr. Healy and Mr. Neal: Yes.

Mr. Healy pot property will eventually tr r to the Port

Mr. N DA for seven years. There’s a management agreement with CDA for
seven y@ -in-hand for economic development on that property to site
business i k

Commissioner RUS8ell: ing Ay involvement with the CDA for the last four years, the
question comes dowitlie Wn the property yet. Nobody is willing to make a commitment

Mr. Neal: All indications ar® it should happen this year.

Mr. Healy: There are some issues regarding the Oregon Trail, it should be getting close but
we’ve heard that before. Hopefully it will transfer in a few months.

Commissioner Lindsay: Mr. Cook referenced zoning ownership was retained in the deed of

record by the Port, which is different than Planning staff explained. He also said it was “of
record.” Is there something in our packet?
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Mr. Cook: The previous Planning Director asked the Port for the deed that conveyed that
property to the underlying owner. In that deed it explains the Port retained ownership of the
industrial zoning to do with what they chose. It should be in your record.

Commissioner Lindsay: It’s a deed restriction that the zoning is taken off and held somewhere
else?

Mr. Cook: Basically, the zoning stayed but the Port has the discretion on when they want to
move that zoning, or do the zone swap.

Commissioner Lindsay: That should be in our file?

Mr. Cook: Yes.

Chair Doherty again called for proponents to speaks™

Seth King, Land Use Attorney, Perkins Coie La@aFirm, representing the Port of Morrow

Mr. King: I’m happy to answer any legal questionSggardingfthe application and the applicant’s
position. I wanted to specifically address the requestios ipe
heard the discussion in reference to ORS 197.763 and 1§ require at the initial evidentiary

conhold the record open that’s

that was responsive to 10! iend8@nd I think it was entirely foreseeable to 1000 Friends and
there’s also a rep from 1000 EsieidSheréise they may be able to clarify the nature of their
request. I think from the Board Ve, 'z
we’d ask for an additional seven day§ e submit our final response of written record.

Chair Doherty: Is it fair to say you want that option? We may grant seven days and whatever
comes in, the applicant may say we don’t want or need the seven days, we’re happy to have it.
So you just want that option? I’m getting at, if we grant it are we looking at 14 days or

potentially 14 days. I’m assuming in seven days when it comes in, the applicant could say we’re
happy with not going any further, go ahead and deliberate to a decision.

Mr. King: That could be the case. I’'m happy to answer questions, but that concludes my
comments.

Chair Doherty: In your letter you reference the site they were looking at was midway between
the Port Industrial Park and the East Beach Park, so I think maybe you wanted to reference
midway between the East Beach and the Army Depot.

Mr. King: That is what I meant to say, thank you.
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Port Commissioner Rick Stokoe: You have a lot of information before you. I’ve reviewed some
of those documents. As you can tell by reviewing those, the effect of the proposed change would
be net zero. So, having that in mind, our partnerships, everything we’re trying to do with our
customers, our business, along with our partnership with the County and the region, we’d ask
you entertain and approve the request on the zone change since it’s a net zero effect, thank you.

Jeff Wenholz: For the record, I’'m Chairman of the Morrow County Planning Commission and
I’'m here to recommend the County Court do adopt as forwarded by the Planning Commission.
This action is similar to something that the Planning Commission did a few years ago, a zone
swap of some zoning out on Bombing Range Road, just like now, but it was applied to the East
Beach area, probably in the last five years. As a previous witness testified, it is a net sum zero
thing. It keeps to the same number EFU acres and the same number of industrial ground so it’s
just applying from one area to another area. To address a concern brought up of the ownership,
yes, it is important the underlying landowner is awagg of it but it would not have affected the
Planning Commission’s decision. We looked at afiplying the zoning from one to another, but as
long as the County does have somewhere in itglf€80rd at the office that the underlying owners
are comfortable with it, the Planning Commissi@fyis fine with it going forward.

E '_3 applied to change the zoning on
Planning Commission would approve

Commissioner Lindsay asked as a point of clarificaltgmiy“Lf
Chair Doherty’s property and he doesn’t know about it;¢h€
that?”

Mr. Wenolz said the Planning Commission never sees the appli& ._ ion where the landowner signs
off on it. That is handled in the office. The office will have that infflere. You’ve been on the
Planning Commission and you’ve seen those...(inaudible)”

Chair Doherty said it’s taken on faith that staff has done its due diligence.

4t 8incver been the Planning Commission’s responsibility before to go

, you wouldn’t approve it.

dandowner was not in favor of it, no, we wouldn’t. T have
confidence staff woul prought it forward if that was the case.
Chair Doherty called for pr Sponents. Hearing none, he called for opponents.

Andrew Mulkey, 1000 Friends of Oregon, Rural Lands Staff Attorney

(Mr. Mulkey distributed copies of new written material in addition to what had already been
provided.)

Mr. Mulkey: I’m not here to advocate against the data center but I’m here to advocate following
the proper planning process and following Oregon’s land use laws. This project is not fully
cooked. I’d ask you to send it back, let it marinate a little longer for the applicant to get its house
in order and provide adequate justification for a Goal Exception in this case. For example,
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Exhibit #1 of why this is not fully cooked is that the Planning Commission didn’t know what the
project was. It’s pretty apparent, the Port, the applicant, clearly knew what the project was from
the get-go but didn’t direct any findings that are required to the proposed findings to what the
actual use would be. The Planning Commission in that sense, was flying a little blind. This
should be put back and given more time and consideration. I provided some exhibits which
show GIS data of existing transmission lines in the area on existing Port Industrial zoned land.
The Port said they need proximity to high voltage transmission lines but cannot have it cross, go
over, the middle of the data center site. And they’ve talked about proximity to rail lines, which
are highlighted on these maps. Even with all of that, with some of the land where a transmission
line crosses over land in Port Industrial zone, there’s plenty of amailable space that appears large
enough to host a data center. I did some digging online and i09ks like the Port already hosts a
number of data centers. I found a news article in the Eas{ ian where a Port representative
said they have 700 or 800 acres within the East Beach thi ¢l ready. That includes
connections for power, sewer, water and fiber. I believedt hat

Road and I’ve been able to locate those using Google Maps. That shows¥hie proximity of these
data centers not only to high voltage transmission lines but also rail lines. [#§hows they can be
sited within some distance of a rail lige. ot k
reason why a data center can’t be sifgd g
rail line and the data center. As an X8 famlly that practlces medicine, they have a
surgery right next to a rail line. Their office dOESe

sited right next to a rail line. I’m not surcial c'eonflict is with a data center, whether
computers are sensitive to trains or not, I’nijl why tha
explanation why. The point being, there’s a 101
an alternatives analysis to show why that land €
this has been called a land swap, but that’s not r&@lh
swap of use.dtisiglear the existing agricultural lang

and.and the applicant hasn’t done
be used for data center. The second part,
the case. It’s a swap of zone, but not a
that will be swapped out of Port Industrial
€ been any intent not to use it for
where you’re taking industrial land that’s been industrial and

d. You’re taking farmland that for whatever reason, has been zoned
pe off it. But that land will always have been used as bottom

pu’re supposed to look at what you need, look at the exception
T nt of land. That’s not what the Port is proposing. The Port has,
apparently, other plans to'€Xtend a lot of services out and they haven’t clarified what those plans
are and haven’t been truly alCurate about what the impacts of this project could be because it’s
admitting once we get this project, we’re going to keep expanding. So again, if data centers need
to be next to high voltage transmission lines, this is kind of the expansion of that. If they need
sewer and water, this is the expansion of that. They’re putting all the other agricultural land
along that corridor, making it subject to future Goal Exceptions and future industrial uses. So,
it’s the County’s job to sit and take the big picture look at all of this. If it’s going to take
extensions of sewer, wastewater, utilities, etc., what are those extensions and how long will they
be in this case? If you’re going to require x miles of extension of these utilities or services, what
if we put it somewhere that’s already zoned for it? How many miles of extensions and services
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would we need in that case? I don’t think there’s been a truly accurate comparison of the
alternatives in this case. Finally, again, the County has the job of having the big picture planning
process in this case. If there’s a lot of industrial land not ever going to be used for industrial land
because of no services out to it and it’s actually agriculture, the County should convert it back to
agriculture both in zone and in reality. It would change how this process goes forward. Right
now, it looks like there are plenty of alternatives to site this location and this is a misuse of the
Goal Exception process which is really meant to increase the ability to get future Goal
Exceptions.

I should address the open record. It’s appropriate to provide an open record period. Had the
applicant not submitted basically a changed proposal, I would have been fine. They have their
position, we have our position. But what happened is, two days before this hearing, I received a
letter showing what I thought had been the proposal all along was now changed. It’s now
confirmed to be a data center. I would like time to ggspond to that. I’d ask the record be held
open to December 20™ and provide the applicantgii)’)anuary 10" to respond, due to the
holidays.

Commissioner Lindsay: The justification for the 'ional @¥en days is because of the change
in the end use? ' T

entiary hearing, that’s fine, but I
e decision at the Planning

Mr. Mulkey: Yes, had that use been known at the initial SVid
think there’s prejudice in this case, not only to the folks makmgs
Commission level, but to agpyone else wanting to participate, notiing able to know what the
project really was. Th L all the way through the alternati¥@# analysis, the (inaudible)
analysis and everythifig dS¥o be done under this reasons Goal Exception process.

Commissioner Russell: ‘Rea
what was formerly the sout
Levy has it titled under. It w
industrial. So now we’ve got an'@
It’s net zero. It’s 89.6 acres zoned 1A@E
now, it’s a net zero effect. Because 89°G#
without all of the land use hearings we’ve'g

we’re asked to do is the Port of Morrow, when they had
i8y.sold it to Bob Levy, and whatever company Bob
‘Breund and they kept that as a placeholder for future
wahsfer that zone to other agricultural ground.
strial to 89.6 acres zoned EFU. Both pieces are farmed
cres zoned industrial could be used for industrial
ot. I fail to follow 1000 Friends’ protest on this.

Mr. Mulkey: What I’m unclear about is, the Port hasn’t done a good job showing where the
existing wastewater and sewer lines are. Is that land already served by existing wastewater,
sewer and other utilities that could be used to actually house a data center like this? If it isn’t
actually serviced with the pipes of utilities that would be needed to serve an industrial use,
whether it’s a date center or other type of industrial use, then I believe it isn’t a net zero because
basically it’s mis-zoned. It’s land that will never be used for industrial/commercial use
because...

Commissioner Russell: When you say never be used for industrial use, what gives you that
impression?
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Mr. Mulkey: The impression of what I heard today, which is what the intent was. The
landowner purchased it so that it can be farmed and they always intended it be farmed and it
sounds like they had some complicated transactions related to wanting to sell or not be able to
control the zoning of the land, so that shows that their intent was to buy it to farm it, not to do an
industrial use on it. That’s why this is not an apples-to-apples comparison. This is an apples-to-
oranges comparison. It’s actually an expansion of industrial use, it’s not a trade.

Commissioner Russell: The Port of Morrow owns a lot of ground zoned industrial. If you look
at it, you’d think it was farm ground. Some is used for grazing because of the poor soil, you
can’t put irrigation on it. But they have a lot of stuff that is irrigated. It’s well known it’s
industrial ground that will be at some point in time potentially used for industrial purposes. 1
find it a hollow argument to say we reserve this piece of ground and we may use it for industrial
purposes and that’s what it’s zoned for and to come in and say well, gosh, you may grow crops
on it right now, you never meant to use it industriallx even though it’s irrigated with effluent
water from industrial processing.

Mr. Mulkey: I think it makes this type of reasofish(
complicated, because if you have all this availabl&{ix
out to it, maybe it doesn’t require tha
project? Because again, this reason§
analysis. I don’t see the Port really mg
a reasons Goal Exception in this case b&ga other available land. There is
available land within the Port, within Eas@Be : iéx data centers with existing
high voltage transmission lines that appearSiit allthéspace réguirements needed and
appears to have the distance from rail lines. &

oal Exception analysis much more

dnd and you could extend utilities
yeen’t it be used for this proposed
a type of alternatives and impact
pase to show it meets the criteria for

CommissionctRussell: in the record but it’s a small county. The footprint of 90 acres
ging for. I don’t think it was a surprise to anybody locally that

Mr. Mulkey: Again, the 8¢ system is meant to be transparent and open to the public
process. That means relevatit information needs to be in the record. The applicant had the
burden of proof in this case. The applicant had the burden of making that clear in the record and
they certainly had ample opportunity to do so and did not.

Commissioner Russell: It’s in the record now. It’s certainly public. I don’t think it comes as
any surprise to anybody on the Planning Commission that that was the client.

Commissioner Lindsay: That’s a big statement about the Planning Commission. I don’t think
we know that.
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Commissioner Russell: The Chair of the Planning Commission is here. He also serves on the
Board of Directors of Umatilla Electric Coop. Umatilla Electric Coop probably, I’'m making an
assumption, was involved in planning for high voltage electricity to see if that was a viable site.
So, it’s not far for me to connect those dots.

Mr. Mulkey: I think the other problem is, it’s not just knowing what the use actually is, but
knowing what the use is informs and is really a necessary piece of information for really actually
addressing the approval criteria in this case. You have to do all the alternatives analysis and if
you don’t know what you’re doing or you haven’t made that explicit up-front, then you haven’t
been able to meet the alternative criteria in the (inaudible) analysis.

Commissioner Lindsay: Do you see having the ability to ald€ss all your concerns in a seven-

day timeframe or is this just going to be continuing regu€sts”

You get a window to add
ring the initial seven-

Mr. Mulkey: No, land use is set up to be a finite and defined proccss.
the issues and the applicant too if they need to submit more informatio@gh

day open record period, they can submit new information. There’s a respOlise period where
someone needs to rebut that with other evidence, they do that and the applicaabgets the final
rebuttal.

Chair Doherty: Are you suggesting thahthe

fpa{fic impact analysis would have been directly
related to a data center as opposed to if Y& 1tk

it’s going to be a data center, you know it’s not S, g to be a '-" mg house or somethlng like
that, that’s going to require a lot of trucking. It’Sighing to be dlfferent types of impacts and
different typesmfattaftic, different types of utilitieSiitha

Mr. Mulkeyas i @ that I think the record clearly shows there’s lots of alternative
space and that'ghiis ion iS@ needed. There are alternative areas within the existing East

en off, that can also accommodate the data center in the

; 4eit’s very close to two types of high voltage transmission lines
and appears to be, as far 3§4g@n tell, next to all the other types of services that wouldn’t be
required to be extended to this other piece of property. So, I think the impacts of putting the data
center on the land that’s set to be swapped out would actually be much lower.

getting the industrid
sense that it’s not nea

Commissioner Russell: So, when you chastise us for not looking globally at the future and
looking at the big picture, it seems to me your knowledge of data centers is limited compared to
what (inaudible). They don’t use much water, they use water, but they don’t consume much
water. They have a giant swamp cooler system that keeps their circuits cool. It runs through
water and lines up really well with the irrigation system. So, to be able to extend a water line out
there and then that gets us closer to areas with a lack of water. As you may or may not know,
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Morrow County is a really productive agricultural County. We live in the middle of a desert.
The difference between highly productive agricultural ground in Morrow County versus low
production agricultural ground in Morrow County is strictly water. Seems like this gives us the
ability to get more water out to more ag at a less expense.

Mr. Mulkey: That may be the case, but planning is not supposed to be made piecemeal and with
ulterior motives and goals in mind. That is not what the exceptions process is made for. So, if
that’s the case that water should be extended out to this area, then I think there’s some bigger
planning processes that the County needs to take on to assess where do we want industrial land.
Do we want industrial land out here or do we want it over here? We have all this land zoned
over here for industrial land but really it should just be ag. Maybe we want to do some
reconfiguration and assess our needs and figure that out. But the Goal Exception process for a
discreet project is not the place to make those types of big picture plans. It’s not meant to jerry-
rig larger planning goals. If the Depot was originallig an exception, created through an exception
process, then technically in that decision, the deci§i@p’had to be made oh, there are adequate
services to serve the types of industrial uses th ‘want here. I think this application shows
that’s not the case. So that was a misstep bec ow it looks like they’re in the position of
having to jerry-rig or figure out some alternative of gettig@services out there. I think
there’s other ways to do that and again, this single d don & particular piece of property is
not the way to do that kind of thing.

Chair Doherty asked if the applicant wanted to come forward¥

Mr. Cook: A lot of th con sis and alternative sites.

t8ation focused on the alternatives afgF

Ralysis completed for this site and completed for this project

been a very extensiv _
e all trying to drive together in an orderly fashion. In

and completed for the Deg
terms of the alternatives analysisévou have.
service providers, urban growHgase chis oardman and the City of Irrigon. The City
Manager of Irrigon is in the roon i Ko

the acres level but the service demafi@8of this type of facility at this point, is not somethlng they
can adequately accommodate without f@iiacting the potential for future or current service
providing to their existing developments, a@nd they’re in the record. In addition to that, [ heard
jerry-mandering of the infrastructure and this is in fact actually a plan and an alternatives
analysis that centralizes the infrastructure plan for the orderly extension of services to an island
of industrial zoning that none of us planned for. We didn’t put the Depot there, the United States
Government did and it’s trying to hand it back to us in a way that provides us with some
industrial ground but basically doesn’t give us any plan on how to serve that industrial ground
with services needed to make it industrially marketable. And so, what anyone knows is, running
the pipelines for multiple miles that are small pipelines is cost-prohibitive to infrastructure
extension to development or even to rural services such as I mentioned before. The dairy issue
that’s come up with Oregon water law is now preventing some of these dairies from being able
to access potable water needs without impacting the critical groundwater areas and some of the
work that Mr. Neal and the Port are doing to potentially provide that service. Overhead
transmission lines — we have an energy corridor planned that’s going on right now in Umatilla
and Morrow County to prevent more overhead transmission lines from the very region that we’re
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taking this industrial zoning off of to move it to an area where we know there will be an
industrial energy corridor through to serve the Depot’s needs. This is the type of facility, and
generally speaking, Port Industrial facilities or the energy load that requires overhead
transmission not underground to serve it, and this case we’re trying to minimize overhead
transmission along the Bombing Range Road, and that’s where this industrial zoning is coming
off of. If that industrial zoning were to stay there, we’ll probably see overhead transmission lines
to serve it and that is a direct impact to what we’re trying to do on the corridors. In a nut shell,
there has been extensive due diligence and alternatives analysis. Some of it, most of it, is in the
record on why this site is not only suitable for the industrial need that Mr. King can speak to on
the legal side of it, but also how do we get infrastructure to and through that region in an orderly
fashion to ensure that minimal impacts are assessed on ag, in addition to meeting the County’s
goals of an already excepted industrial zone which is the industrial zone, the Depot, that has
taken a state exception and we’re trying to figure out how we’d serve it once it comes online.
This has been thoroughly vetted. In the Findings there are two letters from the other two cities.
The Port has explained to you the different needs of the site like this and why this is a suitable
location and why they can’t accommodate it within the existing zone. In addition to that, long-
term this gets services out to a region in a way that is orderly, that is planned, that has been
assessed thoroughly in terms of alternative locations, alternative utility corridors and therefore,
that site was selected for those reasons and that is in the Findings. With that I’ll close my
rebuttal.

Mr. King: Mr. Mulkey stated this issucias nogfally cooked and the best course would be to
ission N Steeavith that. We put forward a very

complete and comprehensive proposal. 10UGAE i

responded to those. The land use process is Vgty ifeE that.

those, provide more information and more detatlisWe th1nk there is no reason for this to go back

to the Planning Commission. Regarding the altét@iatives, I agree with what Mr. Cook has

explamed toaiemshiere. Additionally, you heard testif

Oxs into the analysis, as well. You heard Mr. Mulkey talk about there
@ but we didn’t really hear him specify anything there, it’s all purely
Of ieard him talk about the existing property that is zoned industrial
on Bombing Rélig hat is mis-zoned. But the reality is that is zoned industrial and it
has been planned¥@r i ial. Wils what the Port and the County had included in their Industrial
nk gand County should be commended for determining that site is
and ng'to find a more appropriate site, which we have presented here.
We do believe that the appliéalion is complete and is appropriate to be approved today. As far as
the open record is concerned; we had earlier stated we were opposed to that, we have apparently
received a new letter from 1000 Friends which we still haven’t even read. So, if you were to
determine that you did want to hold the record open, we would not object, we would take that
opportunity to take consideration of that letter and could respond during that seven days. As
needed, we’d reserve the right for an additional seven days for final written argument. We can
talk about the holiday schedule, we can try and figure out how to set that in a way that keeps it
expedited but takes into account the holidays.
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Chair Doherty asked for questions or comments and then said he had a few questions for Mr.
Neal and Mr. Cook.

Chair Doherty: Relative to one of the limitations of the applicant or potential client, is not near
residential and I’m hopeful that because they recognize how God awful the one that went next to
the residential area was, but is that a new requirement?

Mr. Neal: Yes, so that’s the last one. We’re talking about a different site but there are
restrictions on that now.

Chair Doherty: One place I get a little nervous, ’'m the “prog@€tithe ag” guy and I make no
bones about it. I understand any widget factory will makeg#i@f¢ money than a cattle ranch, I can
assure you. But if it’s just about that, funds or potentialfi ¥ou wouldn’t have beaches or
parks or cattle ranches or wheat farms. In the application, it talk§@bout the existing industrial
port that this would be on that, but as I understand it, there isn’t on€g#Additionally, it talks about
the lands between the East Beach and the Army Depot, quite a few lafd§ithere, are better suited
to industrial than EFU. That makes me pretty nervous. The notion it’s 8@ neutral, there’s a
valid argument there but I’d contend that back in the day when they made dagdustrial island,
they got it wrong and 10 years ago when it was removed, they got it wrong whemithey didn’t
remove all of it. I think that’s a validi@Bument, let’s get if off there. Then Mr. ¥ ulkey comes in
here and says look, you have industria f that actually fits better put it there. I'm sympathetlc
to the notion that whatever remaining SQfacreSH

for another 10 years, that’s a bad idea. 1"di
its entirety because a dozen times in the applie BYS tho
and I agree. So, why wouldn’t we do that, jUSEECHIOVE | [Sentirety?

was specificalimselected for this need and the deci§ién made was to only remove the acreage or
p the acreage nc ¥ation, correct?

Mr. Ne it is@iget things changed to Industrial, why would the Port give up any

n the We.that additional? We have additional lands we own out by
Paterson Ferrygh b we do the same? But that isn’t why we’re here today. We’re
here because of 1S and will we end up taking that off there, yes, but we will move it
into another place _ sense rather than, I think something to think about here is, the
water we’re providing i8ctuall¥#dding another 2,800 acres of irrigated agriculture to Mader
Rust Farms and that can’ tBed0st here. We’re making significant investments in that. Our
industrial wastewater line is'dlready in this corridor. It’s literally across the street from running
along the property edge and this would allow us to get fresh water closer to that industrial island
that we talked about. We can’t control how we get, we can’t fly water into the thing, so
somehow we’ve got to get it and this is the least impactful way because we’ll not be taking out
agriculture to put in these lines. They’ll go to easements and not have any negative impact.

Chair Doherty: Regarding Goal 11, what is the plan for the sewer? Is it an extension from the
Port? Is it on-site? Is it 25-100 gallons per day more or less? Does it go through the
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Department of Environmental Quality? Does it go through Umatilla County? Can you address
that?

Mr. Cook: That’s again, another Port decision. As we all grapple with this, we’ve been trying to
get an interagency taskforce to start de-designating our groundwater management area, our
nitrate issue. There’s very significant requirements on the net zero on nitrogen for commercial
facilities and so having the ability to serve that area and potentially the Depot with sewer
treatment is probably going to be needed until we get to the point where we’ve got our nitrogen
issue under control because what DEQ is requiring now is a zero septic system, it’s advanced
treatment technology with zero nitrogen contribution to the alluvial aquifer for some of these
commercial facilities which is very, very expensive. I know that because we’re trying to work
on some.

Chair Doherty: You’re not talking a drain field?

Mr. Cook: We’re not talking your standard dggifficld here. With some of these facilities,
they’re based on loading and about water that ¥ se in an office, could be an office type of
dairy, could be anything related to something tha fyour CAFO permit that you need
on-site sewer for. Where they’re heading right no water quality laws is that is a
no-net provider on nitrate and...
Chair Doherty: I’d think with a data center specifically... wit¥ould it need to be an elaborate
septic system for six employe

Mr. Cook: That’s a gréat

what their estimate is1Qk
mathematical equation, theh.i
commercial septics. I will S@¥ifyoulook,
campus there, that is an advaregat tfeehnology and it’s pretty expensive.

¢ e at any given time and if it triggers a loading under a
Honger standard (1naud1b1e) and it gets pumped into these

Commissioner Lindsay: Will you t0@éh on the zoing and the deed? I want to understand that

piece.

Mr. Cook: I actually think it was a stroke of genius. If I’m in rural Oregon, we all know we
struggle with this, you do, anybody does. The Port of Morrow and Morrow County are blessed
better than anybody in terms of industrial land base the Space Age Industrial Park and your
ability to move that around to where you actually needed it once we realized we weren’t going to
be the Kennedy Space Center, and your industrial zoning was in the wrong spot. I don’t think,
honestly, very many people would have the foresight like Gary (Neal) did when he started to sell
some of this ground that he wanted to retain the zoning on, to add that into the sale agreement,
that yes, you can have this but I have control over it if you develop it for industrial zoning or if
the Port of Morrow and Morrow County want to move it and so that’s actually in the legal
agreement. You do not see that very often. That was something that, again, looking back on it
now was a stroke of genius because if you would have not had that in there, then the underlying
landowner would have had full control like we talked about, about signing off on any type of a
zone change where you don’t know who the landowner is going to be once you sell it and right
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now you’re dealing with a landowner that’s willing to work with you on moving zoning around
to the appropriate locations, get that in there. And then if the landownership changes, you’ve got
the deed record that shows you have control over the zoning and that’s what, correct me if I'm
wrong, happened with that site.

Mr. Neal (?): Correct.

Commissioner Lindsay: Reserved almost like a mineral right.

Mr. Cook: Yes, and again the zoning would be pertinent to theground if this wouldn’t have
been in there. Again, you still have to go through the land ugépsocess like you’re seeing, the
Port just can’t up and lift it without the process. But whajdfigave the Port the ability to do,
regardless of who the underlying owner was, was to make decision at a future date.

is wrong. It seems to me

3 and subsidize the cost
. If he had to extend

not be

g it seems like.

Commissioner Russell: As I look at this, tell me if my thought pro€g
like this is a net benefit for agriculture by being able to extend water
of the extension of the water line out to Easterday Farms or Easterday D3
water from the river on his own dime, all the way up to where that area is, 1
affordable, but this gets him a signifigant part of the way on somebody else’s

somebody else to pay to get that service ol “@l@ser to you, it makes it cheaper and cheaper
for you to come get it. Most of our irrigatcd@ dearethsough the Columbia River farms and
south into the Mader Rust area, which is as Weglalldkno hekeiow flies, about 12 miles away,
even further than that from here, to Paterson Fé&g 1is a long way away and to try to
run your own individual water line that far for irfi@ated agriculture is just cost-prohibitive. If

ah do deal with Mr. Neal who’s got a well or the Columbia River rights.
€t through your CAFO permitting and get through the legal

idelB8cause you have the rural infrastructure provider in the Port of
inty, you don’t have an active port investing in infrastructure

can “the rural industrial needs with irrigated agriculture. So being
able to use something lik&EREPOrt of Morrow system to do both is very cost effective for ag.
Unfortunately, we’d like to S€e it on the east side of the county line as well but we just don’t
have it.

Commissioner Lindsay: Are all the of economies of that water distribution staying in Morrow
County or is some going to Umatilla County?

Mr. Cook: Some of the wastewater is being used on lands in Umatilla County. It’s all generated
in Morrow County but some of it is on Madison’s ground.
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Mr. Neal: I don’t know the exact acreage of where that line splits.

Chair Doherty: How far does this have to go, there’s already a 115 in the neighborhood. There
won’t be the need for a 230. An article in the paper says UEC won’t spread the cost out over the
rate payers if there’s a specific end-user requiring a large amount of juice, then they pay the cost.

Mr. Neal (?): That’s how they work with any client. The client pays for any infrastructure
upgrades.

Chair Doherty: How close is the 115?

Mr. Neal: Really close, the substation is right next to thisffopc
Chair Doherty: That’s important.

Mr. Cook: Commissioner Lindsay and Commissioner Russell were b@
trying to figure out the long-term transmission needs for both Umatilla an@i\Morrow Counties,
the Green Corridor, and how industrial lands are shaping up in the two coun@i@s, The southerly
boundary of the Depot will potentially be one of the loop boundaries. It will brifig, more energy
in...the Depot energy demands will®8€8ignificant when you have a couple thous: nd acres of
potential industrial development. Kud@s ¥alBEC for figuring out how to do that without
hammering ag too hard. :

hat the meeting, we were

Discussion took place between the CommiS§ig Joun y Counsel as to the process, and

options.

Chair Doherty moved to close the Public Hearinggkeep the record open until 5:00 p.m. on

gmber 2! Whime to submit written arguments into
2. on Friday, December 27, 2009, to be taken back up for deliberation on
20.at 9:00 a.m. Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Discussion:

T cedif it was satisfactory to both parties. 1 think it’s satisfactory to 1000
Friends, bi@R! satisf @hhe applicant? Chair Doherty: As I understood from the
attorney, he 1N #@ucnable to the holiday, potentially, but if they say no, change
it, that’s... Mr. N Wable but this tactic is ridiculous in my opinion. We put in things
timely for your revicyey Hute now, two or three times, you've gotten testimony where

ageyicy80'we keep pushing this thing down the road. That’s the

Sfrustrating part. CommiSSigner Lindsay: The frustrating part to me is you had the ability to
object and to state your caséand the answer was we don’t object. Mr. Neal: No, I don’t object,
I'm saying it’s okay to continue. I'm just saying that it’s frustrating because here we are in a
hearing and it’s just now being submitted as testimony. We had to submit ours by Friday last
week to get it in your packet...Chair Doherty: ...This sets a date final, a date certain, right?
Opponents have until the 20" and that’s it. Mr. Nelson: Both parties have until the 20". Chair
Doherty: If they object beyond that, that’s tough, we 're making a final decision. Mr. Nelson:
Unless you need more time for deliberations. Chair Doherty: Right, if we need more time on
our side, but it can’t be dictated from that side. Mr. Nelson: Correct...for the record, I want to
clarify something I said earlier. When I said this was continued from the November date to
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today, due to a transition in the office but the main part, it wasn’t because of the letter from 1000
Friends, it was we questioned whether we sent out the proper notice regarding the signed
affidavit. Commissioner Russell: I think this ultimately goes to the Land Use Board of Appeals
and there’s no sense to put it off Commissioner Lindsay: If there’s a question about process,
why not get it correctly...I'd rather try to do the process correctly. Vote: Unanimous approval,
motion carried.

Break: 11:15-11:24 a.m.

Business [tems
Comment Letter: Shepherds Flat North Energy Facility Request for Amendment 2

Stephanie Case, Interim Planning Director

Stephen Wrecsics, GIS Planning Tech

Mr. Wrecsics said this portion of the project is in Gidliam County but the Morrow County road
network will be utilized, so our comment would b&@#ully implemented road use agreement be in
place prior to the construction phase. The repgWeFivill be done in three phases, first going north,
then central and then south, he explained.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the Planniig poment letter to Chase McVeigh-
Walker with the Oregon Department of Energy concerhifi@¥he preliminary Request for

Amendment 2 for the Shepherds Flat North Energy FacilitVga€ ommissioner Russell seconded.
Unanimous approval.

Agreement with Morro e School District to support the CARE Coordinator Position in
the Public Health Defi@en

Darrell Green, Admitigtse

Mr. Green said Public Heglth Diregt@r Sheree Smith could be available by phone, if necessary.
In 2014, the County agreed (@ipzdVideSin:.000 to IMESD to assist in funding the CARE
Coordinator nurse position. TH TtEXpired two years ago but it was not realized until
the end of fiscal year 2019 as | VOIC

the agreement.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve @id sign the Morrow County CARE Coordinator
Services Agreement, effective July 1, 2019 and terminating on June 30, 2020, amount $10,000;
and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the County. Commissioner Lindsay seconded.
Unanimous approval.

Compensation Board Appointment Request & Update

Karmen Carlson, Human Resources Director

Ms. Carlson said Debbie Radie submitted the required form requesting appointment to the
Compensation Board. If appointed, one vacancy will remain on that Board, she said.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to appoint Debbie Radie to the Compensation Board. Term to be
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023. Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous
approval.
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Lunch Break: 11:40 am. - 1:16 p.m.

Contract Discussion
Commissioner Lindsay said she requested this agenda item because a few contracts have come
forward that contain an administration fee.

Points brought up by the Commissioners were:

e Commissioner Lindsay was and has been opposed to admin fees, preferring all funds go
to provide services.

e Commissioner Russell said it should be looked at contragt
complain we don’t have enough money to pay our Publi¢”
money on the table by not taking admin fees, whighi@¥€ry other county opts to do.

e Chair Doherty said staff tell us what it requiresg0S¥ppork
have a portion of the funds to look after those fur S 1O
budget time we’re told they have to service this million-dollagigontract and this is what it

qat.it would be nice to know the true cost relative to

Irrigon Building Update

Darrell Green, Administrator
Mr. Green said contract negotiations continue With
representative, Hill International, were also discuUgse

ortis. The duties of the County’s owner’s

hly Report
ing Director
gport. She noted staff had processed over 40 administrative and

ministerial app
of the Planning

Lt. Robbins reviewed his report.
Break: 1:56-3:05 p.m. to attend Budget Committee Meeting
Commissioner Reports

e Commissioner Russell discussed his involvement with the upcoming interviews for the
Executive Director position at the Association of Oregon Counties.
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3:08 p.m. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) — To conduct deliberations with
persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations
3:22 p.m. Closed Executive Session

3:23 p.m. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) — To consult with counsel
concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or
litigation likely to be filed

3:38 p.m. Closed Executive Session

J'o review and evaluate the
any public body, a public
hearing

3:39 p.m. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(i)
employment-related performance of the chief executive offi
officer, employee or staff member who does not request
3:53 p.m. Closed Executive Session

Signing of documents

Adjourned: 4:00 p.m.
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Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes
December 18, 2019

Port of Morrow Riverfront Center, Port Commission Room
Boardman, Oregon

Present

Chair Jim Doherty Kate Knop, Finance Director
Commissioner Melissa Lindsay Richard Tovey, County Counsel
Commission Don Russell Roberta Lutcher, Executive Assistant

Darrell J. Green, Administrator

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: 9:01 a.m.
City & Citizen Comments: None
Open Agenda: No items

Consent Calendar: Commissioner Lindsay requested to remove the Accounts Payable to
Business Items.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar:

1. Purchase of Real Property Agreement with Stiffler, LLC. Property identified as 0.01
acres (535.4 square feet) of property on Tax Lot 4N25E15-500, Morrow County, Oregon.
Purchase price $55.80 and County will relocate existing fencing and install a 10" utility
sleeve when improvements are made to Wilson Lane and Olson Road as part of a
planned project. Morrow County is acquiring the property to expand the right-of-way to
provide a sweeping right-hand turn off Wilson Lane onto Olson Road.

2020 Holiday Schedule.

Reappoint Wolf Depredation Advisory Committee Members: Dean Robinson as a Wolf
Conservation Representative; and Cam Sweeney as a Local Business Representative.
Both terms to be January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023.

4. Reappoint Special Transportation Fund Advisory Committee Members: Virginia
“George” Nairns, Karen Pettigrew and Mike Jones. Terms to be January 1, 2020
through December 31, 2022

5. Reappoint Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Advisory Committee Member:
Karen Pettigrew; term to be January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022.

6. Permit Applications #OPB and #OPC from CenturyLink — telephone lines on Tower
Road and Kunze Lane.

7. Amendment 1 to 2019-2021 Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) #159175 for the Financing of Mental Health, Addiction Treatment & Recovery,
and Problem Gambling Services; and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the
County.

Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

w

Business Items
Accounts Payable
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A jacket purchase at Morrow County Grain Growers was discussed, as well as previous
purchases that don’t adhere to the definition of a uniform. It was decided to approve this
particular purchase but to schedule a larger discussion in the new year.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the Accounts Payable dated December 19"
$206,463.77, and three Payroll Payables — November 26", $193,950.40, December 4",
$186,516.65 & $3,250. Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

2019-2021 Oregon Department of Education (ODE), Youth Development Division IGA #12392,
Juvenile Crime Prevention Funds. $60,000

Christy Kenny, Juvenile Department Director

Tim Hanforth, Made to Thrive Program

These funds are to be used to help reduce recidivism and to prevent youth from entering the
juvenile justice system. Most of the funding would go to the Made to Thrive program, a non-
profit organization that serves at-risk and vulnerable youth in a positive environment through
extracurricular activities such as sports, music, dance and art. Made to Thrive has been serving a
small number of Morrow County youth for several years and this funding will allow them to
fully expand and serve more youth in the County. Various discussions.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the 2019-2021 ODE IGA #12392, effective July 1, 2019
to June 30, 2021; amount $60,000; and authorize Chair Doherty to sign on behalf of the County.
Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Discussion: Commissioner Lindsay requested updates be
provided to either this Board or the Local Public Safety Security Coordinating Council before
the first year expires. Unanimous approval.

Request to Purchase Patagonia Electronic Health Records

Sheree Smith, Public Health Department Director

Vickie Turrell, Public Health Office Manager

Ms. Smith explained the Department has been exploring options for Electronic Health Record
(EHR) system providers in order to enhance the capability of client medical records, improve
immunization services, streamline billing and decrease staff duplication of work. During the
discussion, it was decided grant funding will be pursued that could also help with the purchase of
optional equipment, such as a barcode scanner.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the Patagonia Health Sales Agreement, based on the
amount of 841,510 and the stipulation that additional grant funds will be sought,; and authorize
the Administrator to sign on behalf of the County. Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous
approval.

Vehicle Purchase Authorization

Sheriff Ken Matlack

Undersheriff John Bowles

The Sheriff’s Office purchased seven vehicles, two of which were necessary due to vehicle
crashes and the others were scheduled rotations. Current policy allows purchases between
$10,000-$30,000, if previously budgeted, to be approved by the Administrator; above that
amount, such a purchase would require BOC approval. The issue being discussed was whether
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the Sheriff’s Office needs to seek BOC approval because the equipment add-ons bring the total
to the level that requires BOC approval. The vehicles, with the exception of two, are under the
$30,000 threshold, but when equipment such cages, radios and modems, are added, it brings the
total purchase amount to $40,000-45,000. Chair Doherty and Commissioner Russell expressed
their preference that the base cost of the vehicle be the determining factor when BOC approval is
necessary.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the purchase of the following vehicles:

1. 2020 Dodge Durango, $32,172.91 (vehicle rotation, will be the K-9 vehicle, outfitting has
begun)
2019 Dodge Charger, $24,776.27 (replacement vehicle, outfitting will begin)
2019 Dodge Ram 2500, $29,776.27 (vehicle rotation, outfitting will begin). This vehicle
will be reimbursed by the City of Irrigon and turned over to them in 2022-2023.
2020 Dodge Durango, 332,139 (Parole & Probation vehicle)
2019 Dodge Ram 1500, $28,765.11 (vehicle rotation)
2019 Dodge Ram 1500 $27,974.28 (vehicle rotation)
2019 Dodge Charger, 824,642.60 (vehicle rotation)
Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Discussion: Commissioner Lindsay said we need to
reconsider how ofien vehicles are replaced, given the amount to equip the vehicles. Sheriff
Matlack said he was not opposed to looking at a longer use. Undersheriff Bowles said five years
are too long but four are “doable.” Vote: Unanimous approval.

w

N R

Airport Advisory Committee Bylaws, Resolution No. R-2019-26, and Appointments

Sandi Pointer, Public Works Management Assistant

Ms. Pointer explained the members were previously appointed, but the term dates need to be
updated and approved. In addition, the request includes the new appointment of an alternate.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to appoint Bill Jepsen as the Alternate to the Tenant/Pilot
Representative position, term date to be January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2021. Commissioner
Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the Bylaws of the Morrow County Lexington Airport
Advisory Committee. Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Russell moved to adopt the Bylaws by Resolution No. R-2019-26: In the Matter of
Approving Bylaws of the Morrow County Lexington Airport Advisory Committee. Commissioner
Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to establish the following term dates for the Airport Advisory
Committee:
1. January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020 for John Bowles, Emergency Management
Representative
2. January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020 for Steve Puntenney, Alternate to Emergency
Management Representative
3. January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020 for Sheryll Bates, Economic Development
Representative
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4. January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2021 for Barbara VanArsdale, Tenant/Pilot
Representative
January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2021 for Wayne Seitz, Member at Large Representative
January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2022 for John Boyer, Business User Representative
January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2022 for Sean Wood, Alternate to Business User
Representative
8. January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2022 for Ragna TenEyck, Member at Large
Representative
9. January 1, 2020 — December 31, 2022 for Tom Wolff, Alternate to Member at Large
Representative
Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

NS W

Solid Waste Advisory Committee Appointments
Sandi Pointer, Public Works Management Assistant

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the following appointments to the Solid Waste Advisory
Committee:
1. Jeffrey Loa, Position One — Finley Buttes Land(fill, term to be December 18, 2019 — July
1, 2023
2. Brian Evola, Alternate to Position One — Finley Buttes Landfill, term to be December 18,
2019 —July 1, 2023
3. Mike Newett, Position Five — Franchise Collector, term to be December 18, 2019 — July
1, 2023
4. Ryan Miller, Position Six — County at Large, term to be December 18, 2019 — July 1,
2023 7
5. Sharon Miller, Alternate to Position Six — County at Large, term to be December 18,
2019 -July 1, 2023
6. Shelley Wight, Alternate to Position Seven — County at Large, term to be December 18,
2019 —July 1, 2023
Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

Review Questionnaire — Office Fixed Assets & Office Machine Usage

Darrell Green, Administrator

Mr. Green said staff in both the Finance and Administration Offices have been looking at ways
for the County to be more efficient in its processes regarding the multiple invoices, contracts and
agreements associated with office machines. He cited some examples as copiers, printers and
postage machines. The first step would be a survey to each department to determine existing
equipment and if it meets current and future needs. He requested Board support of continued
research to increase efficiencies and that the Commissioners encourage Department Directors to
complete the survey.

Chair Doherty said elected officials can be encouraged to complete the survey, but appointed
Department Directors certainly can be required.

Commissioner Lindsay said she hoped it would be a model for looking at other services, such as
the water supplier and cell phone providers.
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Mr. Green said the survey results would be provided to the Board at a later date.

Order No. OR-2019-16 — Adopting a Fee Schedule

Darrell Green, Administrator

Mr. Green noted the Fee Schedule will be updated semi-annually, going forward. He talked
about some of the new fees and other changes.

Commissioner Russell requested that airport hangar rent fees be evaluated for the next update,
and added he’d like to see market rate charged; Commissioner Lindsay agreed.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the updated Morrow County Fee Schedule, effective
January 1, 2020 and the accompanying Order No. OR-2019: In the Matter of Adopting a Fee
Schedule for Morrow County; with the understanding hangar rents will be evaluated for the next
update. Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

Break: 10:38-10:47 a.m.

Columbia River Enterprise Zone II Board Appointments
Discussion topics included:
e The upcoming expiration of the current enterprise zone on June 30, 2020 and possible
options going forward.
e The pros and cons of Commissioners as Morrow County’s representatives on the Board
vs. two Commissioners and the Administrator.
e The substantial increase in tax abatement funds CREZ II will receive on agreements
already negotiated for future projects.

Commissioner Russell moved to reappoint himself to the Columbia River Enterprise Zone II
Board and Chair Doherty as the alternate; both terms to be January 1, 2020 — December 31,
2021. Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Unanimous approval.

2020 Commissioner Assignments to Committees & Boards
Following the discussion to determine assignments, there were a few questions related to the
Columbia Development Authority (CDA):

1. Commissioner Lindsay asked if the original agreements with the counties and ports, give
the CDA the authority to sign contracts, or would those have to come back to the entities.
Commissioner Russell explained the CDA is working to get the property transferred to
the CDA, where it will remain for seven years. After that, the titles will go to the
counties or ports and not stay in the CDA. Chair Doherty said he wondered about an
agreement from a few months ago that was presented to Morrow County after it had been
signed by the CDA that sold some land in Morrow County. He asked if there was
anything that precludes the CDA from doing that in the intervening seven years. Lisa
Mittelsdorf, the Port’s Economic Development Director, answered his question by saying
no property can transfer in that seven years. Commissioner Russell provided a few
details about the agreement Chair Doherty referenced. He said it involved property with
a center pivot on it that is located outside the fence of the Army Depot that was portrayed
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as being part of the sale between the two parties. The buyer, most likely, did not perform
his due diligence because the property was owned by the Army Depot. We’ve entered
into a lease with him to continue to farm it and he’s leasing property he thought he
purchased. The original lease was up and we re-leased it to him with the understanding
the lease payments would go toward the purchase price. Chair Doherty commented the
lease purchase can only go through after the seven years.

2. Discussion continued on Commissioner Russell remaining as the County’s representative
on the CDA for continuity purposes with the federal government’s transfer process,
which might occur in the spring of 2020.

3. Commissioner Lindsay said she was trying to understand the authority of the County’s
representative on the CDA and asked if it was unlimited. Commissioner Russell said he
wouldn’t say it was unlimited. He said he hasn’t been so much concerned about the plans
for the Umatilla County side of the line as the Morrow County side. There is an
infrastructure subcommittee that is dealing with infrastructure on the Umatilla County
side, but the plans for each county are decided by the respective counties. Commissioner
Russell said eventually the Port of Morrow will fill our side up with industrial
development and the Umatilla County side will ask Ryan Neal and his team, or his
predecessor, to help them build their side.

Chair Doherty discussed the Association of Oregon Counties’ Federal Land Management
Subcommittee. After a brief discussion, it was agreed Chair Doherty would continue to
represent the County on that subcommittee.

Commissioner Reports were provided.

11:44 a.m. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) — To conduct deliberations with
persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations

12:02 p.m. Closed Executive Session
Signing of documents

Since this was the final meeting of the year, Chair Doherty took the opportunity to talk about the
past year as Chair of the Board of Commissioners. He said while growing up, he never thought
he’d wind up as a Commissioner, let alone also serving as President of AOC. He said it felt
surreal at times and has been so humbling. At the end of the day, he said he hoped he was not a
politician but some form of a statesman. He thanked his fellow Commissioners for the
opportunity to do this and said he hoped he had been judicious in his role as Chair.
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(For BOC Use)

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ftem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners L"C/
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Darrell Green Phone Number (Ext):
Department: Administration Requested Agenda Date: 2/26/2020
Short Title of Agenda Item: )

(No acronyms please) KnowBe4 Cybersecurity Statement of Work

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[_] Order or Resolution Appointments
[ ] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
["] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[ ] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

L0 CEJoed

[ ] Contract/Agreement Other
I:I N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [H] No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Darrell Green 2/24/2020 Administrator Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Tushn Nelson vmmay') SY)gf2e County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate

DATE  #Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When each office has notified the submitting

department of spproval. then suhmit ¢ ROC (or on the aoenda.

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

At the Board of Commissioner meeting on February 19, 2020 decided to move purchase the
KnowBe4 license from Eide Bailly. By signing the KnowBe4 Statement of Work, Morrow
County will receive two hours of free set up training from Eide Bailly to help us launch the
program. Jordan Standley and I will attend this training. Jordan/IMESD will facilitate the timing
and necessary details required for the services to be performed.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

Software 101-125-5-20-3531 in the amount of $2250.00 per year
150 email accounts at $15/account.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)MOTION(S):

Motion to approve and have the Chair or Administrator sign the Statement of Work.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.
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Statement of Work

This document outlines the understanding of the terms and objectives of the cyber security consulting
engagement between Eide Bailly LLP (“Eide Bailly”) and Morrow County (“you”).

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Phishing as a Service

Eide Bailly will work with you to conduct exercises to determine if employees are susceptible to
common email phishing scenarios. We will assess their level of awareness and comprehension of
phishing attacks and compliance with company policy for handling e-mails containing links and/or
attachments. This assessment will also determine their ability to recognize questionable or fraudulent
messages.

To conduct these exercises, a series of e-mails will be sent to employees. These emails may simulate a
variety of scenarios, including notice from a department head, invoice from a vendor, question from a
recognizable business partner, etc.

Our simulated phishing attacks may focus on one or both of the following attack vectors:

e Accessing Unrecognized Websites — The phishing message sent can request the user click on an
embedded link which will take them to website for a purpose described in the message.
Commonly used scenarios are requesting them to try a new e-mail web access login, anti-spam
solution, confirm information, or reset their password. In an actual malicious attack, accessing
the web site would likely result in the user’'s computer being installed with malware. They also
may be tricked into divulging confidential information. Our test will be setup to track which
individuals in the test group clicked on the link accessing the website.

e Opening Attachments — In this type of test we will send an e-mail containing an attachment to
determine if employees adhere to policy regarding opening unsolicited attachments. A number
of approaches can be taken including impersonating IT staff and requesting they run the
attachment to install a needed software application, sending it from a recognizable vendor
claiming it to be demo software, etc. A tailored scenario can be developed to create the best
test for your environment. Opening the attachment will trigger a tracking mechanism to allow
us to provide you with a report of which individuals from the test group opened the attachment.

e Training - If a user fails a test simulation, a training session is initiated. Detailed training

information is included in the report deliverable and can be used to support compliance
activities.

Responsibilities

Morrow County agrees to perform the following functions in connection with this engagement:
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Statement of Work

e Designate an appropriate individual to oversee our services.

s Make all management decisions and perform all management functions.

e Facilitate the timing and necessary details required for the services to be performed.
e Communicate internally to appropriate parties when testing will occur.

* Evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed.

e Establish and maintain internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

On behalf of Eide Bailly LLP and its representatives, Eide Bailly LLP agrees that any nonpublic personal
client information obtained from you will remain confidential as provided above and will not be used for
any purposes other than that for which it was provided.

Deliverables
Upon completion of exercise, Eide Bailly will provide an Email Phishing Analysis Report, which provides

an overview of the testing scenarios, campaign results, and overall conclusions. An appendix of detailed
attack information for each recipient is also included and can be used to support compliance activities.

Professional Fees and Timeline of Services

The following table outlines the fees for providing phishing Services to Morrow County for the period
outlined in this statement of work.

Phishing as a Phishing as a Phishing as a Phishing as a
Service Service Service Bi- Service

# of
QiSELs Onetime Quarterly Monthly Monthly

Campaign Campaign Campaign

101-250 $2,000/year $4,000/year $4,800/year | $7,100/year

Key Assumptions

e This proposal does not include implementation or any hardware or software solutions.

e Out of pocket expenses (if required and agreed upon) will be billed in addition to the above fees.
e One campaign to be performed between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020 at client direction.

* All email addresses to be included in the phishing assessment are within the same domain.
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Phishing Software License Only

This subscription option requires initiative on the part of the organization to create, execute, and report
on its own campaigns. All phishing and reporting to be performed by the organization.

The subscription option includes the following:
* Unlimited phishing campaigns.
s Access to all training videos and modules.
» Access to all training material and games.

e Access to USB Drive Test

In addition, Eide Baily will provide two hours of consulting time to have one of our KnowBe4 specialist
help setup your instance of KnowBe4 and provide some basic instruction and guidance.

KnowBe4 License Fees

Phishing Software License

Number of Users ($15/seat charge)

150 $2,250/year

Key Assumptions — License Option

e This proposal does not include implementation or any hardware or software solutions (it does
include KnowBe4 licensing).

e KnowBe4 license is good for one year, based on client direction.

e Out of pocket expenses (if required and agreed upon) will be billed in addition to the above fees.

e All email addresses to be included in the phishing assessment are within the same domain.
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Details of Engagement

This statement of work shall be effective as of the signature date below and remain in effect or until
parties have completed their obligations as described within or contract is terminated by mutual
agreement of both parties. The services set forth are to be provided to Morrow County in accordance
with, and are subject to, the terms and conditions outlined in Appendix A. Any follow-up services that
are requested will be governed by the terms and conditions of a subsequent statement of work.

Signatures

We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to you. If you agree with the foregoing terms, please
select one of the service options below, sign this letter in the space provided, and return it to us.

EIDE BAILLY LLP

"f% wiRtuter ) [%/%//%/VL;/ZJP—"

Karen Andersen E. Anders Erickson
Manager, Cyber Security Services Director, Cyber Security Services

Morrow County

Signature

Title

Date
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Appendix A: Terms and Conditions

Timeline

We will begin our procedures upon acceptance of this engagement agreement. We would expect to
have our work completed within the timeline set forth in this Statement of Work. This timetable
assumes the timely receipt of requested information and the cooperation of the parties involved. If
delays are experienced in receiving information, the delivery of our work will be delayed accordingly.
Should we experience difficulties in these areas we will inform you promptly and discuss the effect on
our timetable. You also agree that we may discuss this engagement with other partners or associates in
our firm for the purpose of obtaining expertise, research materials or other matters essential to this
engagement. You also agree that we may disengage ourselves from this engagement for any reason.

Fees

Eide Bailly LLP is dedicated to professionalism and service to our clients. While professional fees should
be reasonable, they must be representative of the professional quality of the services to be provided.
The fees outlined in this Statement of Work are based upon the amount of time required to complete
the assignment and the level of personnel assigned.

In addition to the fees outlined, we will be compensated for any time and expenses, including time and
expenses of legal counsel, we may incur in conducting or responding to discovery requests or
participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, regulatory, or other proceedings as a result of our
Firm’s performance of these services. You and your attorney will receive, if lawful, a copy of every
subpoena, if lawful, we are asked to respond to on your behalf and will have the ability to control the
extent of the discovery process to control the costs you may incur.

In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 or more days
overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of
termination even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all
time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.

Should our relationship terminate before our procedures are completed, you will be billed for services
to the date of termination. All bills are payable upon receipt. A service charge of 1% per month, which is
an annual rate of 12%, will be added to all accounts unpaid 30 days after billing date. If collection action
is necessary, expenses and reasonable attorney's fees will be added to the amount due.

Dispute Resolution

The following procedures shall be used to resolve any disagreement, controversy or claim that may arise
out of any aspect of our services or relationship with you, including this engagement, for any reason
(“Dispute”). Specifically, we agree to first mediate.

Mediation

All Disputes between us shall first be submitted to non-binding mediation by written notice (“Mediation
Notice”) to the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences voluntarily
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with the aid of an impartial mediator. The mediator will be selected by mutual agreement, but if we
cannot agree on a mediator, one shall be designated by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”).

The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties. The
parties agree to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the
mediator, to reach an amicable resolution of the Dispute. Mediation will be conducted with the parties
in person in Minneapolis, MN.

Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared
equally by the parties. Either party may commence suit on a Dispute after the mediator declares an
impasse.

Governing Law and Venue

We both agree to submit any unresolved Dispute to trial by a federal or state court venued in
Minneapolis, Minnesota. This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of North Dakota (regardless of the laws that might be applicable under the principles of
conflict of law) as to all matters including without limitation, matters of validity, construction, effect,

and performance.

Limitation of Damages and No Punitive Damages

The exclusive remedy available to you in any adjudication proceeding shall be the right to pursue claims
for actual damages that are directly caused by acts or omissions that are breaches by us of our duties
under this agreement and/or under applicable professional standards, such damages will be limited to
no more than two times fees paid under this agreement. In no event shall we be liable to you for any
punitive or exemplary damages, or for attorneys’ fees.

Time Limitation

The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence
that fully and fairly establishes the facts underlying any Dispute. We both agree that, notwithstanding
any statute of limitations that might otherwise apply to a Dispute, it is reasonable that you may not
bring any legal proceeding against us unless it is commenced within twenty-four (24) months
(“Limitation Period") after the date when we deliver our report, return, or other deliverable under this
agreement to you, regardless of whether we do other services for you or that may relate to the report.

The Limitation Period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, or
have not become aware of the existence or possible existence of a Dispute.

Indemnity

You agree that none of Eide Bailly LLP, its partners, affiliates, officers or employees (collectively “Eide
Bailly”) shall be responsible for or liable to you for any misstatements in your financial statements
and/or tax return that we may fail to detect as a result of knowing representations made to us, or the
concealment or intentional withholding of information from us, by any of your owners, directors,
officers or employees, whether or not they acted in doing so in your interests or for your benefit, and to
hold Eide Bailly harmless from any claims, losses, settlements, judgments, awards, damages and

Morrow County 02/17/2020



Statement of Work

attorneys’ fees from any such misstatement, provided that the services performed hereunder were
performed in accordance with professional standards, in all material respects.

If a claim is brought against you by a third-party that arises out of or is in any way related to the services
provided under this engagement, you agree to indemnify Eide Bailly against any losses, including
settlement payments, judgments, damage awards, punitive or exemplary damages, and the costs of
litigation (including attorneys’ fees) associated with the services performed hereunder provided that the
services were performed in accordance with professional standards, in all material respects.

Assignments Prohibited

You agree that you will not and may not assign, sell, barter or transfer any legal rights, causes of actions,
claims or Disputes you may have against Eide Bailly, its partners, affiliates, officers and employees, to
any other person or party, or to any trustee, receiver or other third party.

Morrow County 02/17/2020
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Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Commissioner Jim Doherty Phone Number (Ext): 5303

Department: Board of Commissioners Requested Agenda Date: February 26, 2020
Short Title of Agenda Item: o )
(No acronyms please) 2020 Grant Application to Oregon Dept. of Ag., Wolf Depredation

Compensation & Financial Assistance County Grant Program

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ ]2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

L0 OJeJCcd

[] Contract/Agreement Other
|:| N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [] Yes [@ No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
. J”IM/X /22 Administrator Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate

DATE  +Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When each office has notified the submitting
department of approval, thhen submit the request to the BOC for placement on the agenda,

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred) Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once thls form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.

Rev: 3/28/18



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

The Morrow County Wolf Depredation Advisory Committee is applying to the Department of
Agriculture's Wolf Depredation Compensation & Financial Assistance County Grant Program.
The Committee has applied for these funds each year, going back to 2013. The Committee
expects increased interest from livestock producers to apply for prevention funds following the
re-designation of Areas of Known Wolf Activity (AKWA) in Morrow County by the Oregon
Department of Fish & Wildlife.

The award notification from ODA will occur after March 6, 2020.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

If awarded the amount requested in the application, the County's contribution would be $100
(10% of the total expenditures incurred for implementing the grant program).

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)MOTION(S):

If removed from the Consent Calendar:
Move to approve the Wolf Depredation Compensation & Financial Assistance County Grant
Program Grant Application to the Oregon Department of Agriculture in the amount of $26,000.

B9 Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3/28/18



OREGON DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Department
of Agriculture

WOLF DEPREDATION COMPENSATION
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
COUNTY GRANT PROGRAM

GRANT APPLICATION
2020

Oregon Department of Agriculture
635 Capitol St NE
Salem, OR 97301-2532
503-986-4767



A. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

On June 24, 2011 the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 3560, which directed the Oregon Department of
Agriculture (ODA) to establish and implement a wolf depredation compensation and financial assistance grant
program, using moneys in the Wolf management Compensation and Proactive Trust Fund to provide grants to assist
counties to implement county wolf depredation compensation programs under which:

1. Compensation may be awarded to reimburse persons for livestock or working dogs that are injured or killed
due to confirmed or probable wolf depredation;

2. Financial assistance may be awarded to persons to assist with the implementation of livestock management
techniques or nonlethal wolf deterrence techniques designed to discourage wolf depredation of livestock;

3. Compensation may be awarded to reimburse persons for livestock or working dogs that are missing due to
wolf depredation;

4. Compensation may be awarded to counties for allowable expenses associated with implementing the block
grant program in their county.

ODA’s wolf depredation compensation and financial assistance grant program complements the Oregon Department of
Fish and Wildlife (ODF&W) Wolf Conservation and Management Plan in the area of developing and maintaining a
cooperative livestock producer assistance program that proactively minimizes wolf-livestock conflict and assists
livestock producers experiencing wolf-related livestock losses.

B. GRANT SCHEDULE - 2020 TIMELINES

Application Schedule
February 3, 2020 Grant application process opens for counties;
February 24, 2020 Grant applications due to ODA;
Feb. 24 —Mar. 2, 2020 ODA application review process completed;
March 6, 2020 Award notification and grant agreements to be mailed.

* Late submissions may be accepted at the discretion of ODA

C. COUNTY ELIGIBILITY

In order for a county to be eligible for consideration of these grant funds, certain requirements must be met. These
requirements are outlined in OAR 603-019-0015. In short, they include:

Establishing a county advisory committee to oversee the county wolf program;

Establish a procedure by which producers experiencing a high rate of depredation are given priority;
Establish compensation rates for death/injury of livestock or working dogs;

Establish compensation rates for missing livestock attributable to wolf depredation;

Establish eligibility requirements for producers to access grant funds based on current ORS’s and OAR’s;
Must assure that at least 30% of a county’s total grant funds are used for nonlethal prevention;

Must contribute money equal to 10% of the allowable expenditures needed to implement the program;

D. SUBMISSION PROCESS

Please complete the attached grant application (sections E through J) for consideration of funds. The completed grant
application must be received by the ODA by Wednesday, February 24, 2020, by 5:00 PM.

Applications should be addressed to:

Jason Barber, Program Area Director

Wolf Depredation Compensation and Financial Assistance Grant Program
Oregon Department of Agriculture

635 Capitol Street NE

Salem, OR 97301

| jbarber(@oda.state.or.us




E. PLEASE COMPLETE - COUNTY BLOCK GRANT APPLICATION FOR 2020

Applicant Agency’s
Legal Name: Morrow County

Mailing 5 . Box 788

City: Heppner Zip: 97836

County: Morrow

Name of County Contact: Jim Doherty

Title: Morrow County Commissioner

Phone #:541-676-5613 or 541-571-0584 Fax #: N/A

County Contact Email: jdoherty@co.morrow.or.us and rlutcher@co.morrow.or.us

GRANT FUND REQUEST

Category 1. Grant funds requested for compensation for death or injury to
livestock or working dog’s due to wolf depredation from February 27, 2019
through February 24, 2020. (Please complete section F if applying for Category
1 funds.)

Category 2. Grant funds requested for livestock and working dogs that are
missing due to wolf depredation from February 27, 2019 through February 24,
2020. (Please complete section G if applving for Category 2 funds.)

Category 3. Grant funds requested for implementation of livestock management
activities and nonlethal wolf deterrence techniques, to prevent interactions
between wolves and livestock or working dogs from approximately March 8,
2020 through January 31, 2021. (Please complete section H if applying for
Category 3 funds.)

¢ 25,000

Category 4. Grant funds requested for the expenses allowed under 603-019-
0015(g) for implementation of the County Block Grant Program for 2020.
(May only request 90% of actual expenses, The remaining expenses are to be
included under Item 5 as a money contribution.)

$1.,000

Total grant funds requested

$26,000

Category 5. County contribution. The county must contribute an amount of
money equal to 10% of the total expenditures incurred for implementing the
grant program as described in OAR 603-019-0015(g)

$100

Authorized Official: Jim Doherty <. Title: Morrow County Commissioner

Signature of Authorized //
Official: A

Date: |February 20, 2020

—

*Note: At least 30% of ODA’s total grant program award for each year must be distributed for livestock
management techniques or nonlethal wolf deterrence techniques designed to discourage wolf depredation of

livestock.




F. Category 1 — Death or Injury of Livestock - Documentation Requirements

If your county is applying for Category 1 funds for compensation of death or injury to livestock or working
dog’s due to wolf depredation, please provide the following information for each claim:

Producer name;

Location of death/injury incident (within or outside area of known wolf activity);

Copy of ODF&W Wolf Depredation Investigation Summary Report;

Animal type;

Whether animal was insured:

Number of animals included in claim

Determined value of animal(s);

Wolf deterrence methods being used by producer prior to depredation

§° =) ONCA R £9 iD=

G. Category 2 — Missing Livestock Documentation Requirements

If your county is applying for Category 2 funds for missing livestock or working dog’s due to wolf
depredation, please provide the following documentation for each claim:

1. Please provide logistics information (map or other documentation) showing that the missing animals
went missing within an area of known wolf activity (AKWA) as designated by the ODFW;,

2. What tools, documentation or other information did your committee use to rule out or eliminate other
causes of the missing livestock/working dog(s)? Please provide examples for each claim;

3. What tools, documentation or other information did your committee use to rule out circumstances that
may have attracted wolves or encouraged conflict between wolves and livestock for each specific
claim;

4. What tools, documentation or other information did your committee use to determine that each
producer filing a missing livestock claim was implementing best management practices and
reasonable non-lethal methods to deter wolves?

H. Category 3 — Description and Price Estimate of Non-lethal Preventative Techniques

If your county is applying for Category 3 funds to assist with the implementation of live-* 1anagement
activities and nonlethal wolf deterrence techniques, to prevent interactions betw- livestock or
working dogs, please provide a brief description of the preventative tec* d _cring and their
estimated cost. 6

Example: 90

2 Range Riders from 04/01/20 thro»-" P‘- +1£ per hour for a total of 545 hours = $6,540

Fuel costs for 2 Range R*~ 99

Purchase of 7 ™ 6

2 Bone . -1 estimated time of 16 hrs. paid at $35 per hour = $560

Total Prevention Grant Requested = $7,750




I. ADVISERY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP - 2020

Tn the space provided below, list the name of your Advisory Committee members, their contact phone # and email (if
available).

Co. Commissioner: James Doherty phit: 541-571-0584 Emaif: idoherty@co.morrow.or.us
Livestock Owner: B0b Mahoney phit: 541-676-5876 Email: coWboysandangels@hughes net
Livestock Owner: Paul Hisler Phy: 941-676-5878 Email: histerranch@yahoo.com
Coexist. Member: Al Scott ph#; 541-676-5151 Email: 8golfer60@gmail.com
Coexist Member: __Dean Robinson Ph#: 941-676-9249 Email: Mlorene@hotmail.com
Business Rep.: John R. Gould Ph#: 541-980-2202 Email: iohn.r.gould@lesschwab.com
Business Rep.: Cameron Sweeney Ph#: 941-676-8955 Email: c3Msweeney@etsprayers.com

J. CERTIFICATION

I certify that this application is a true and accurate representation of the proposed work that will be performed by this
county in relationship with the Oregon Department of Agriculture’s Wolf Depredation Compensation and Financial
Assistance Grant Program, and that I am authorized to sign as the Applicant. By the following signature, the Applicant
certifies that they are aware of the requirements of the Wolf Depredation Compensation and Financial Assistance Grant
Program as stipulated in OAR 603-019-0001 to 603-019-0040, are in full compliance with the requirements specified in
OAR 603-019 and are prepared to distribute the grant funds to qualified participants as summarized in this document.

Applicant Signature:ém Date: February 20, 2020

Jim DOherty Title: Morrow County Commissioner

Print Name:




H. Category 3 — Description and Price Estimate of Non-Lethal Preventive Techniques

Morrow County has two confirmed wolf packs in our area. OQur 2019 funds were spent on
Preventive Measures for two ranchers. Since the publication of the AKWA and livestock
growers being informed of the situation by ODFW, we anticipate more applications this year,
based on inquiries.

We expect Range Rider costs to increase substantially and are, therefore, requesting the majority
of our funds in this area.

Range Riders from approximately June 2020 — December 31, 2020: $20,000
Fuel costs for Range Riders ' $ 3,000
Bone Pile Removals $ 2,000

Total Prevention Grant Requested: $25,000
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ShY
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 5 C/
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Staff Contact: Sheree Smith Phone Number (Ext): 5212
Department: Health Requested Agenda Date: 2/26/20

Short Title of Agenda Item: po 65t for BOC to submit a Letter of Support to accompany the EOCCO
Public Health Grant Application to augment the purchase of Patagonia EHR

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1stReading [ | 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

=1 OO0

[] Contract/Agreement Other
E] N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [_] Yes [H] No
Reviewed By:
Sheree Smith 2/21/20 Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
/ﬂﬂﬁf&/@( _a_‘{/-;'{// z>_Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE  # \llow 1 week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting
department of approval. then submit the ceguest to the BOC for plucement op the aoenda

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

The Health Dept is submitting an application to the EOCCO for Public Health Grant funds for $25,000 to
augment the purchase of Patagonia EHR system.

The intention is to support the basic purchase proposal in addition to other optional items: Data
Migration - $4,000, Immunization Barcode Scanning Software - $3,000 (plus purchase of 5 scanners
$180/ea and monthly subscription of $50/mos), and Patient ID Scanning Feature - $500 (plus purchase
of 3 scanners $300/ea and monthly subscription of $60/mos each; $180/Mos).

This results in additional costs over the original proposal of $41,510 for the first year of $7,500 in
Software plus $230/mos resulting in a first year cost of $51,080 with the added $230/mos for years 2 -
5.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

The Health Dept does not currently have funds allocated for the purchase of an EHR, but the BOC have
indicated support for this purchase utilizing County funds set aside for this purpose.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)MOTION(S):

Review and revise as desired, the Letter of support (Template) provided. Once the body of the letter is
approved, please sign the Letter of Support from the Morrow County BOC for inclusion in the Health
Dept Grant application submitted to EOCCO for consideration of funding.

B A ttach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 11/7/17



February 26, 2020
Eastern Oregon Coordinated Care Organization Grant Review Committee,

The Morrow County Board of Commissioners fully supports the proposal from the Morrow
County Health Department seeking funding through the EOCCO Public Health Grant for the
purchase of an Electronic Health Record (EHR) system.

Morrow County Health Department staff have demonstrated leadership of health service access
and delivery, and are proponents of improvement in the health of individuals. Additionally,

. Health Department staff have been supportive of the EOCCO from the beginning, actively
participating at the local, regional and board level.

Currently, the Health Department utilizes a basic EHR for client record keeping with very
limited functionality for billing and data reporting. The Board recognizes the need for the
Health Department to obtain a more robust EHR system that would enhance the capability of
client medical record keeping, improve immunization services, and streamline data entry and
billing (improve efficiency, reduce errors and duplicity and result in greater revenue). An
adequate EHR is also a requirement to pursue Public Health Accreditation.

The Morrow County Board of Commissioners are committed to providing the remaining needed

funds to purchase the Patagonia EHR system, in addition to supporting needed staffing and
maintenance costs for functionality and ongoing monthly expenses.

We would like to thank you for your thoughtful consideration regarding approval of this grant
application on behalf of the Morrow County Health Department.

Sincerely,

Melissa Lindsay Don Russell Jim Doherty
Chair Commissioner Commissioner
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET liSmie

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Darrell Green Phone Number (Ext): ext 5309
Department: Administration and Finance Requested Agenda Date: 02/26/2020
Short Title of Agenda Item: )

(No acronyms please) Office Machines Discovery Survey Results

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1stReading [ ]| 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 15 Minutes
[ | Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

I Y

[ ] Contract/Agreement Other
EI N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [H No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
- DATE
\ - <
/)&/Zhﬂ\ Y / ZAdministrator Required for all BOC meetings
o DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
%g g g§ '&%\\\ Lo Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
YN pare items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate

DATE  *Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously).

When each office has notified the submitting
depar ~for place i

H ar plac o

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR

review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.
Rev: 3/28/18



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

The Office Machine survey was sent out and the responses are valuable. Generally, all
departments are satisfied with their current office equipment.

The survey yielded the following results throughout the County:
3 Wide Plot Printers - All owned.
5 Postage Machines - All leased.
14 Copiers - 4 are owned, 10 are leased.
42 Printers - All owned.
There are two copiers with expired lease agreements, one more will expire this fiscal year, and
three more expiring this calendar year.

With the overall value of these copiers expected to be over $10,000, the next step would be to
initiate an Intermediate Procurement method. A Request for Quote allows an agency to request
and document informal quotes from three sources. Currently, three vendors service all the
County's copiers and have expressed an interest in the opportunity to present bids. Additional
vendors could be solicited, if desired.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

None at this time.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(SYMOTION(S):

Move to approve the Intermediate Procurement process Request for Quote from three suppliers on
three copiers, with the possibility of adding additional machines as their leases expire.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3/28/18



MORROW COUNTY
110 N Court Street
Heppner, OR 97836

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

##*THIS IS NOT AN ORDER®**#%#%

Return To: by (time) on (date) via mail or fax (xxx)xxX-XxxXx

Description:

Requested Availability Date of Product:

Contact: (XXX)XXX-XXXX

Any reference to brand names is meant as descriptive not restrictive.
Alternate bids will be considered on products, which meet or exceed products indicated on quote.
Vendor is to mark clearly alternate proposals.

“OR EQUAL”: Any brand name listed in the specifications as “or equal” or “or equivalent” shall establish the minimum
requirements for quality, utility, durability, function, purpose, etc. Other product brands may be offered that are equal to or better
than the product brand name. Bidder may show cost differences, alternates and options in the space provided in the quote. This
clause is not meant to be restrictive, but to set the minimum standard. AGENCY SHALL DETERMINE, IN ITS SOLE
DISCRETION, WHETHER A PRODUCT OFFERED IS “EQUAL.” When the designation is “or equal” or “equivalent” Agency
shall make its decision after Bid Closing.

Vendor Name Federal ID No:

Address: Phone:

City, State, Zip: Fax:

All Pricing Must Be Held Firm For 30 Days
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY PRICE TOTAL

PER
UNIT

Canon Model IR 5045 1

Canon Model ADVC5045 1

Ricoh MPC3003 1




Additional Specifications:

Canon Model IR Adv C5000 has four paper trays, external staple finishing, hole punch, scanning
to folders and email, shared device.

Canon Model ADVC 5045 has four paper trays, internal staple finishing, fax capabilities,
scanning to email, booklet finishing, shared device.

Ricoh MPC3003 has four paper trays, internal staple finishing, fax capabilities, scan to folder,
confidential printing, shared device.

S:\accounting\Analysis\Expenditures\20-Materials & Services\Copier\BoC Presentation Documents\BoC 02-12-2020\RFQ -
Copiers.doc

2



Item #51

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY

NAVAL FACILITIES ENGINEERING COMMAND NORTHWEST
1101 TAUTOG CIRCLE
SILVERDALE, WA 98315-1101

11011
Ser AM1.RS/20-00067

FEB 0 5 2020

Ms. Melissa Lindsay, Chair
Morrow County Commissioners
P.0O. Box 788

Heppner, OR 97836

Dear Ms. Lindsay:

The Navy is in receipt of the Morrow County Board of
Commissioners letter dated January, 22, 2020. Your letter was
in support of Idaho Power Company’s (IPC) request for a
perpetual easement term for their easement request for
construction, installation, operation, maintenance, repair, and
replacement of a 500 kV Transmission Line and associated
communications and transmission equipment.

While your input has been received and considered, the Navy
is not at liberty to discuss, nor is it in IPC’s best interest
to discuss private negotiations regarding their easement
purchase. The Navy has taken your input into account in our
decision making process and thank you for taking the time to
prepare a letter of support for IPC’s project.

If you have any further questions, please contact Realty
Specialist Mr. Ralph Sprout at ralph.sprout@navy.mil.

Sincerely,

ICHAEL D. BRADY ;

Real Estate Contracting Officer

Copy to:

The Honorable Greg Walden
The Honorable Ron Wyden
The Honorable Jeff Merkley
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Morrow County Board of Commissioners 5
(Page 1 of 2) 5

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Commissioner Jim Doherty Phone Number (Ext):
Department: Requested Agenda Date: 2/26/2020
Short Title of Agenda Item: ] . .

(No acronyms please) Sponsorship of the Eastern Oregon Economic Summit

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[ ] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 minutes
Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

|

NN

|| Contract/Agreement Other
D N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Apreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes El No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
ministrator Required for all BOC meetings
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate

DATE  *\llow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When each office has notified the submitting

: reguest to the BOC {or placement on the

department of approval. then submit

Note All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred) Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.

Rev: 3/28/18




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Further discussion of sponsoring the Eastern Oregon Economic Summit.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

Court Awards-Discretionary Account; 101-101-5-20-3720

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)YMOTION(S):

Motion to approve to sponsor the Eastern Oregon Economic Summit in the amount of $

B Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3/28/18



1118/2020 Sponsorship Opportunities | EasternOregonSummit

Title Sponsor Level - $10,000

SpOﬂSOI‘Ship Levels and Benefits ¢ Extra-large logo on summit registration website

H = ¢ Extra-large logo on summit registration materials
Eastern Oregon Economic Summit + Extraarge logo on summil packet
* Logo on lanyards
¢ Complimentary event registration (10 tickets)
¢ Complimentary exhibit booth (1 space)

Become a sponsor of the 2020 Eastern Oregon Economic Summit. As a sponsor you
can help bring together state, regional, and local leaders from across private and
public sectors to discuss issues and set goals to improve our Eastern Oregon .

™ : , - vel -
communities and region. The Eastern Oregon Economic Summit will be market- ed Platinum Level - $5,000
and advertised on multiple platforms in all Eastern Oregon counties and the wider
region. There are five sponsorship levels for your consideration.

¢ Large logo on summit registration website

* Large logo on summit registration materials
* Large logo on summit packet

¢ Logo on lanyards

e Complimentary event registration (10 tickets)

HowiTo BecomerA Sponsof * Complimentary exhibit booth (1 space)

Become a sponsor by complete the sponsorship form online by clicking below or by
downloading a PDFE version of it by clicking hera, Complete the form and return it
Wt e, Gold Level - $2,500

s Medium logo on summit registration website
¢ Medium logo on summit registration materials
e Medium logo on summit packet

« Complimentary event registration (5 tickets)

¢ Complimentary exhibit booth (1 space)

You will be notified when your form has been received and coupon code will then be
emailed to you for your complimentary tickets.

Questions

Bobby Levy, EOWC President
541-561-5557
bobby@eowc.biz

Silver Level - $1,000
e Small logo on summit registration website
» Small logo on summit registration materials
s Small logo on summit packet

Phil Scheuers, Pac/West Communications ) ; . ’
¢ Complimentary event registration (2 tickets)

541-66-7160

scheuers@pacwestcom,.com
B Bronze Level - $500

* Name on summit registration website

¢ Name on summit registration materials

¢ Name on summit packet

¢ Complimentary event registration (2 tickets)

https:.//www.easternoregoneconomicsummit.com/sponsorships 11



Deschutes County Board of County Commissioners

P. O. Box 6005, Bend, OR 97708-6005

1300 NW Wall St., Suite 206, Bend, OR 97703-1960
(541) 388-6570 - Fax (541) 385-3202
www.deschutes.org

board@deschutes.org

Tammy Baney

Anthony DeBone

Phil Henderson

February 22, 2017

My fellow colleagues,

This May, Deschutes County will host the 2017 National Association of Counties (NACo) Western
Interstate Region (WIR) conference. Over the span of four days, we’ll welcome hundreds of county
commissioners and judges from the 15 western states to Central Oregon.

As you can imagine, this conference is a fantastic opportunity for all of us to showcase Oregon’s beauty
while connecting with commissioners and judges from across the West.

Our goal is to raise $70,000 that will be used for conference events, meals and experiences. We hope each
of your counties will be able to partner with us as we host this event. Your support will help us to create a
memorable experience for all of our conference attendees. If you are interested in assisting with
conference costs, please send checks to Laura Cleland at AOC. Checks should be made out to AOC with
a clear notation that the funds are for WIR — Deschutes County. They can be mailed to 1201 Court St.
NE, Suite 300, Salem, OR 97301.

Thank you in advance for your consideration. We are looking forward to working together as we
showcase our great state to the western states” commissioners.

( [}’W‘,}Mﬁ%

Tammy Baney, Chair
Deschutes County Board of County Commissioners



Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes
March 8, 2017
Irrigon Branch of the Oregon Trail Library District, Community Room
Irrigon, Oregon

Present Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director
Chair Melissa Lindsay Roberta Lutcher, Executive Assistant
Commissioner Don Russell Audience

Commissioner Jim Doherty Mike Gorman, Assessor/Tax Collector
Jerry Sorte, Administrative Officer Robin Jones, Finance Department

Kate Knop, Finance Director David Sykes, Heppner Gazette-Times
Richard Tovey, County Counsel Terry Tallman, Boardman

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 9:01 a.m.

City and Citizen Comments: No comments

Open Agenda/Agenda Changes: Postponed: Request for funding from the Neighborhood
Center of South Morrow County; Add to Consent Calendar: Claims — February 2017 Retirement
Taxes; Add under Business Items: Invoice from the Columbia Development Authority

Consent Calendar
Commissioner Russell moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar:
1. Accounts Payable dated March 9, 2017
2. Purchase Pre-Authorization for Sheriff’s Office 10% portion of the 2016 Response
Information Management System (RIMS) Server Replacement (85,728.76)
Commissioner Doherty seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Doherty moved to approve the February 2017 Retirement Taxes dated March 6™,
Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

Presentation of Morrow County Financial Statement and Independent Auditors’ Report
Cameron Anderson, CPA, Barnett & Moro, P.C.

Mr. Anderson provided an overview of the audit process, briefly reviewed the basic financial
statement and answered questions from the Board and audience. He noted the County’s total net
position is $87,000,000, compared to $88,700,000 the previous year. The full Auditors’ Report
can be found on the County website: www.co.morrow.or.us/finance/page/financial-statements.

Commissioner Russell moved to accept the Morrow County, Oregon Financial Statements and
Independent Auditors’ Report dated June 30, 2016. Commissioner Doherty seconded.
Unanimous approval.

Business Items
Sheriff’s Office request to extend job offer above Step 1
Undersheriff John Bowles
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Undersheriff Bowles requested an exception be made to allow him to extend a job offer to a
candidate higher than Step 1. He then outlined the reasons for the exception. Human Resources
Director, Karen Wolff, provided a Sheriff’s Department 2016-2017 Wage Scale for the
Commissioners to review.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve extending an offer of employment to Phillip W. Morris
at the following level: Patrol Deputy, Advanced, Step 5. Commissioner Doherty seconded.
Unanimous approval.

Budget Transfer Resolution No. R-2017-5

Kate Knop, Finance Director

Commissioner Russell moved to approve Resolution No. R-2017-5 - In the Matter of
Transferring Appropriations within the Morrow County General Fund, Pursuant to ORS
294.463(1). Commissioner Doherty seconded and requested further explanation on what
necessitated the intra-fund transfer, which Ms. Knop provided. Unanimous approval.

Request for Funding Assistance for the 2017 National Association of Counties (NACo) Western
Interstate Region Conference hosted by Deschutes County

Mr. Sorte

The letter of request from Deschutes County Commissioner Tammy Baney states the 2017
NACo Conference will be held in Deschutes County in May and they are hoping to raise $70,000
from the other counties in the State to support conference events, meals and experiences.
Discussion ensued.

Commissioner Doherty moved to approve a contribution of 32,500 to Deschutes County in
support of the 2017 NACo Western Interstate Region Annual Conference. Commissioner Russell
seconded and requested additional discussion. He said there is a $70,000 goal and 36 counties
in the State, therefore, each county should contribute $2,000. He moved to amend the motion to
contribute $2,000. Commissioner Doherty seconded the amendment. Unanimous approval.

Vote on the original motion to contribute to the NACo Conference: Unanimous approval.
Motion carried as amended.

Request to reappoint Wolf Conservation Representative to the Morrow County Wolf
Depredation Advisory Committee

As the Board’s representative, Commissioner Doherty provided an update on the most recent
meeting of the Wolf Depredation Advisory Committee. He presented a request for
reappointment and draft bylaws for review.

Commissioner Russell moved to reappoint Alan Scott to the Morrow County Wolf Depredation
Advisory Committee as a Wolf Conservation representative, term to be January 1, 2017 through
December 31, 2020. Commissioner Doherty seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the Bylaws of the Morrow County Wolf Depredation
Advisory Committee. Commissioner Doherty seconded. Unanimous approval.

Board of Commissioners, March 8, 2017 Page 2 of 4



(For BOC Use) |

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ltem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 5 h
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Eric Imes Phone Number (Ext): 541-989-9500
Department: Public Works / Road Requested Agenda Date: 2/26/2019
Short Title of Agenda Item: o

(No acronyms please) Purchase Pre-Authorization for Dump Trucks

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[ ] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[ ] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 5-10 minutes
[ ] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

L= =0

[ ] Contract/Agreement Other
E N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity: Kenworth - Sourcewell Purchasing
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: §670,000.00 - $750.000 Budget Line:2(1-220-5-40-4401
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? ]il Yes [_] No
Reviewed By:
Matt Scrivner 2/24/202(Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
- 7 DATE
@M 5/ 2+// Z-Administrator Required for all BOC meetings
< O DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
K.\(no-? Via, emay \ 2-24-a2D  Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE  *\llaw | week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting
departmeant of approval, then submit the reguest to the BOC for placement on the agenda.

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR

review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commaissioners Office.
Rev: 3/28/18



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Road Department had planned on replacing two dump trucks this budget cycle that was approved
during budget season. These trucks will be purchased through Sourcewell and we are working
with getting documents approved with ORPIN for the purchase. We are asking permission to
move forward with the purchase of (2) Kenworth trucks equipped with Palfinger hook systems, 12
yard dump boxes, 10 yard sanders, 4,000 gallon water tanks, and Henke snow plows. These items
are in the equipment replacement plan of the road department.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

Funds are available from the Equipment replacement budget 201-220-5-40-4401

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(SYMOTION(S):

Motion to approve purchase and move forward with ordering of trucks and attachments with
Kenworth truck through Sourcewell purchasing.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3/28/18



Item #6a

ROAD REPORT FEBRUARY 2020

SNOW PLOWING: Crew members have been plowing snow in upper elevations when needed.
JOHNSON GRADE: The crew has finished adding rock to Johnson grade.

BARCLAY: The bridge deck on Barclay is in need of replacement. Crew members have made repairs to keep it safe
until we have engineering for the final replacement.

CATTLE GUARDS: Crew members continue to make cattle guard repairs as time allows.

MORGAN: we have torn up the old unrepairable asphalt on Morgan road. Crew members are building base and
pulling ditches. A culvert will be replaced after the finish rock is placed.

SPRING BLADING: Our blade operators have transitioned from fall blading to spring blading this month. We are
working on problem spots and adding rock where needed.

HOMESTEAD LN: As the bridge on homestead is currently being replaced, our crew has been working on weed
removal and shoulder work in preparation of a fill and pave project at the bridge.

ROAD SIGN REPAIR: Crew members continue making sign repairs around the county as needed.

MCNAB LANE: we have been building up shoulders on the grade of McNab in preparations for paving this spring.
Two culverts will also be replaced before the end of the month.

PERMITS: Following are the permits approved for the month of February.

620 Nichols Road A25-Updated UPDATED -- Approach Approved - updated version

731 Dolven Road A45 Road issue -- Needs construction -- Road Dept. reviewing and discussing
with NextEra

259/259 | 621 East Oregon Lane | Gene Williamson Approa 01/16/2 | 02/10/2020
a ch 020
260/260 | H- Horizon Lane Riley Wight Approa 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Pub. ch 020
Ac.
OPF 693 Rhea Creek Road | Columbia Basin Utility 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Electric Co-Op 020
OPG 693 Rhea Creek Road | Columbia Basin Utility | Crossing #4 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Electric Co-Op 020
OPH 693 Rhea Creek Road | Columbia Basin Utility Crossing #3 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Electric Co-Op 020




0oP| 693 Rhea Creek Road | Columbia Basin Utility Crossing #2 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Electric Co-Op 020

OPJ 693 Rhea Creek Road | Columbia Basin Utility | Crossing #1 01/30/2 | 02/10/2020
Electric Co-Op 020

OPK 689 Olson Road LS Networks -- Craig Utility Fiber3-1.5 02/03/2 | 02/10/2020
Redelings inner tubes 020

OPL 559 Homestead Lane | Umatilla Electric Co- Utility 115kV line 02/05/2 | 02/12/2020
Op 020

Work20 | 559 Homestead Lane | Magnum Power LLC Work working 02/05/2 | 02/12/2020

0 020

261/261 | 777 4th Road West Dwight & Michelle Approa 02/05/2 | 02/12/2020

A Osborne ch 020

OPM 655 Baseline Lane Columbia Basin Utility 12.47Kv 02/06/2 | 02/11/2020
Electric Co-Op overhead line | 020




Correspondence

Oregon State University

. . Extension Service — Morrow County
@15] EXtenSlon SeI'VlCC Oregon State University
Morrow County 54173 Hwy 74

PO Box 397
Heppner, Oregon, 97836

P 541-676-9642
extension.oregonstate.edu/morrow

Livestock and Rangeland Programing Needs Assessment

Oregon State Extension Service is conducting a needs assessment for Livestock and Rangeland programs in
Morrow County. If you own or manage livestock or rangelands, please take some time to complete this survey
to the best of your ability. If you are not the person who actively manages your livestock operation, we ask
that both you and your manager fill out this survey to gain a broader depth of the needs of the county. Please
let us know if you need additional copies. If you need more space on any question, please feel free to add

additional sheets of paper to the form.
If you would prefer to complete this form online, please visit:

If you are not involved with these industries, we are sorry you received this survey in error. Please inform us if
you wish to be removed from this mailing list by either returning this survey stating that you wish to be
removed, or call the Extension office at 541-676-9642.

Completed form(s) can be returned to: OSU Morrow County Extension Service
PO Box 397
Heppner, OR 97836

We appreciate your time and effort to enable Oregon State University Extension Service to better serve the

people of Morrow County. Thank you for your help in shaping our programing to be effective and meaningful.

(i jz/»ﬁ%mﬂdw

Assistant Professor

Animal & Rangeland Sciences
Umatilla & Morrow Counties
chris.schacht@oregonstate.edu

Agricultural Sciences & Natural Resources, Family and Community Health, 4-H Youth, Forestry & Natural Resources, Extension Sea Grant, Open Campus, and Outdoor School
programs, Oregon State University, United States Department of Agriculture, and Oregon counties cooperating. The Extension Service offers its programs and materials equally to all
people.



1. Thinking about the last 5 years, please mark the range of the total number of head you have for each production
enterprise types. For categories you do not raise, please mark none.

None 1-10 11-50 51-200 201 -1,000 1,001 - 10,001 +
10,000
Beef (Cow/Calf)y O, O, O, O, O, O O
Beef (Stocker Oo Ol Oz Oa O4 Os 06
/Feedlot)
Dairy Oo Ol Obz O;., O4 Os Os
Forage OO Ol Oz 03 04 Os OG
Production
Forestry Ou Ol Oz 03 O4 Os 06
Goats OG Ol Oz O3 O4 Os OG
Horses Ou Ol Oz O3 O4 Os OG
Certified Organic On Ol OZ Oa O4 O_r, OG
Pigs OG Q1 Oz O3 O4 05 OG
Poultry Og Ol Oz 03 O4 OS OG
Sheep Oﬂ Ol Oz 03 04 OS OG
Other (Please OO Ol Oz O3 O4 O5 OG
Specify below)
Other:

2. Please indicate a range of the total acres in each category of other land uses you have in addition to livestock for the

last three years.

None 1-10 11-50 51-200 201 -1,000 1,001 - 10,001 +
..... 10,000 )

Alfalfa Hay O, O O, O, @) O, O,
Bluegrass Seed Oo Ol Oz 03 Oa Os Os
CRP/CREP O, O, O, O, O, @ O,
Improved OO Ol OZ O3 O4 Os OG
Grass Hay

Irrigated Crops OO Ol OZ Oa ©4 Os Os
Native Hay Oo Ol Oz 03 O4 OS OG
Wheat OO Ol Oz O;., O4 Os Os
wildlife O, O, O, O, O, (@7 O,
Habitat

Other (Please OU Ol Oz O; O.; O_r, OG
Specify)

Other:

3. What is the main purpose of this operation? Please rank how important each of these is to you (1=most, 4=least)

Supplemental income/hobby farm
Sole means of livelihood
Maintaining a lifestyle you enjoy

Other (Please specify)




4, How many years have you owned or managed livestock and rangelands?

Ol Less than one year Os 21-30 years
O;_. 1-5 years Os 31-40 years
03 6-15 years O7 41-50 years
O4 16-20 years Og 50+ years

5. What areas of your production system would you like to improve?

6. What diseases/pests concern you?

7. a.What are the greatest challenges you see in the livestock industry in Morrow County?

b. What are the greatest challenges you see in the livestock industry in Oregon:

8. Please indicate whether or not you have used each of the following resources within the last three years.

Have Have not Topic(s) Discussed
used used
Farm bureau 01 Oz
Internet C)1 OZ
Manuals 01 Oz
Newsletters Ol Oz
Oregon State University Extension Ol Oz
Other University Extension service
(Which? ' ) Cy O,
Sales Representative Ol Oz
Other
(Describe ) O, O,

9. Please rank from most preferred to least, the mode of communication for learning about livestock production and
rangeland management (1= most preferred, 5 = least preferred).
Email (Please provide preferred email address

Face to face meeting at the extension office (Please call to set up a meeting 541-676-9642)
Newsletter

Ranch visits

Seminars/Workshops

Other (Please specify)




10. Oregon State University is committed to diversity and to ensure equal opportunity for those wishing to benefit
from our programs and services. We invite you to voluntarily disclose your ethnicity, race, and gender to help us
monitor the effectiveness of our civil rights and affirmative action efforts. Neither the information provided, nor
the decision not to provide it, will be used to determine eligibility for Extension programs and services or the
benefits available through participation.

Although the categories listed below may not represent your full identity or use the language you prefer, for the
purpose of this form, please indicate which choices below most accurately describe your ethnic, race, and
gender/gender identity. As disclosure is voluntary, you may indicate “Prefer Not to Answer.”

a. Gender d. Age
Ol Male Ol Under 17
Oz Female Oz 18-25
O, Prefer Not to Answer O, 26-40
o . O, 41-60
b. Are you Hispanic or Latino:
O 61+
Ol Yes °
O Prefer Not to answer
Oz No °

O3 Prefer Not to Answer e. Education

Ol Less than high school

¢. Ethnicity » High school diploma (or GED)

Ol American Indian/Alaskan Native 3 Some college

Oz Asian

Oa African American/Black
O

4 2 year degree

O00O0

s 4 year degree

4 Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander O Professional degree
Os White O7 Doctorate
06 Two or more Og Trade School/professional school
O7 Prefer Not to answer Og Other

Olo Prefer Not to answer



Oregon State University NON PROFIT

. . U.S. Postage
Ei5py Extension Service DAID
Umatilla COUI‘lty Pendieton, Oregon
2411 NW Carden Ave, Umatilta Hall, Permit #28

PO Box 100, Pendleton, OR 97801
Address Service Requested

MORROW COUNTY
PO BOX 788

HEPPNER, OR 97836
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Oregon State University Extension Service prohibits discrimination in all its programs, services, activities, and materials on the
basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age,
marital status, familial/parental status, income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, genetic information,
veteran’s status, reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)
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